
CITY OF ALBION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 
 

 AGENDA  
 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 
. 

6:00 P.M. 
 

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING 
 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 

 

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. ROLL CALL 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS 

      

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their  

 comments to agenda items only and to no more than three (3) minutes. Proper  

 decorum is required.) 

 

VII. CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on  

             as one unit) 

 

  A. November 14, 2018 Special Session Minutes 

  B. November 19, 2018 Study Session Minutes 

  C. November 19, 2018 Regular Session Minutes 

   

IX. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 

A. Request Approval Boards & Commissions Appointments &   

     Reappointments 

 

 EDC, Initial Appointment, Term to Expire 7-1-2024 

 EDC-Initial Appointment, Term to Expire 7-1-2024 

 

 Albion Trust, Initial Appointment, Term to Expire 11-7-2022 

 Albion Trust, Reappointment, Term to Expire 11-7-2023 

 

B. Request Approval 1st Reading Amended Council Rules of 

Procedures 

 

C. 2019 Budget 

COUNCIL-MANAGER 

GOVERNMENT 

 

Council members and 

other officials normally in 

attendance. 

 

 

Garrett Brown 

Mayor 

 

Maurice Barnes, Jr. 

Council Member 

1st Precinct 

 

Lenn Reid 

Council Member 

2nd Precinct 

 

Sonya Brown 

Mayor Pro-Tem 

Council Member 

3rd Precinct 

 

Marcola Lawler 
Council Member 

4th Precinct 

 

Jeanette Spicer 

Council Member  

5th Precinct   

 

Andrew French 

Council Member 

6th Precinct 

 

LaTonya Rufus 

City Manager  

 

 The Harkness Law Firm 

Atty Cullen Harkness  

 

Jill Domingo 

City Clerk 

 

 
NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH 

HEARING IMPAIR-MENTS 

WHO REQUIRE THE USE OF A 

PORTABLE LISTENING DEVICE   

 

Please contact the City 

Clerk’s office at 

517.629.5535 and a listening 

device will be provided 

upon notification.  If you 

require a signer, please 

notify City Hall at least five 

(5) days prior to the posted 

meeting time. 



CITY OF ALBION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 

 

 Component Units – 243 Brownfield; 244 EDC; 246 Business 

Incubator/Food Hub; 247 TIFA; 296 Revolving Loan; 277 Maple 

Grove 

 

 Streets-202 Major Streets; 203 Local Streets; 450 Street 

Improvement: 452 MDOT Street Improvement 

 

 Public Service-226 Solid Waste; 590 Sewer Fund; 591 Water Fund; 

661 Equipment Pool 

 

 Trusts-711 Cemetery Trust 

 

 Misc. Funds- 265 Drug Enforcement; 367 Sidewalk Program 

 

 Misc. Other-Personnel, Salaries & Wages 

 

 Fee Schedules 

 

 Budget Wrap-Up  

 

X.  Future Agenda Items 

 

XI. Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member(s) 

 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit    

             their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum   

  is required). 

 

XIII. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

XIV. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

XV. ADJOURN 



 

 

Page 1 of 5                                                                             Special Council minutes/11-14-18 

 

  
 

City of Albion 

Special Council Session Minutes  

November 14, 2018 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 

 

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), Jeanette Spicer (5), and Mayor 

Brown.   

 

ABSENT: Maurice Barnes (1), Lynn Reid (2), and Andy French (6).  

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

 

LaTonya Rufus, City Manager, Cullen Harkness, City Attorney, Scott Kipp, Chief 

of Police, Tom Mead, Finance Director, Kent Phillips, Interim Director of Public 

Works, John Tracy, Director of Planning, Building & Code Enforcement, and 

Haley Snyder, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer. 

 

V.  Presentations  

 

A. Albion Housing Commission Annual Report to Council 

 

Ann Kemp, Director of Albion Housing Commission provided Council with an 

update on the Housing Commission. 

 

Comments were received from Council Member Brown, Lawler, and Mayor 

Brown. 

 

VI.  PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to 

agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 

 

 Comments were received from Dave Atchison, 108 W. Erie Street, Daniel Farmer, 1101 

Weiner Drive, Nadia Wolf, 409 Irwin Avenue, Al Smith, 1209 Adams Street, Susan Conner, 

811 N. Eaton, and Eric Tobin, 409 W. Ash Street.  

 

VII.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 



 

 

Page 2 of 5                                                                             Special Council minutes/11-14-18 

 

  

 

A. Request Approval Resolution #2018-27, Review of Financial Qualifications of 
Candidates for Elective Office 

 
Comments were received from Council Member Brown, Mayor Brown and 
City Attorney Harkness. 

 
Spicer moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED to Approve Resolution #2018-27, 

Review of Financial Qualifications for Elective Office (4-0, rcv). 
 

B. Discussion/Approval – 2nd Reading of Proposed Ordinance 2018-08 Code of 

Ethics 
 

Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness stated there is a typo 
in Section G – should be “only”. Noted changes since the last review: 1st 
offense-$100.00; 2nd offense-$300.00; 3rd offense-$500.00; second reading 

and effective date. 
 

Additional comments were received from Council Member Brown and 
Mayor Brown. 
 

Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to approve the 2nd Reading of 
Proposed Ordinance 2018-08 – An Ordinance to Provide a Code of Ethics for 

the City Council and to Create Section 1-28 of the Albion Code of 
Ordinances. (4-0, rcv) 
 

C. Request Approval City Manager Contract Amendment Relative to Moving 
Expense 

 

City Manager Rufus stated she is requesting an extension from 45 days to 90 
days to submit all moving expense receipts.  

 
Comments were received from Council Member Brown and Spicer; Mayor 
Brown. 

 
Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to Approve City Manager 

Contract Amendment Relative to Moving Expense. (4-0, rcv)  
 

D. Discussion/Approval Attorney Fees for Council Rules Review 

 
Comments were received from Mayor Brown stating the allotted amount for 

attorney fees for the Council rules review needs to be raised to cover final 
expenses.  
 

City Attorney Harkness suggested a ceiling cap be set for any additional 
expenses. 
 



 

 

Page 3 of 5                                                                             Special Council minutes/11-14-18 

 

  

 

Council Member Brown stated the Council needs to figure out how much 
has already been spent before setting a cap. 

 
Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to table discussion until Monday’s 
Regular Council Meeting. (4-0, vv) 

 
E. Discussion West Ash Street Right Away 

 
City Manager Rufus asked for Interim DPW Director, Kent Phillips, Finance 
Director, Tom Mead, Director of Planning, Building & Code Enforcement, 

John Tracy, and Interim City Manager Scott Kipp to come forward to discuss 
this matter.  

 
City Manager Rufus stated in following the City Charter and policies, there is 
a section in the Employee Handbook that states an individual shall not utilize 

information known as a City employee for own personal gain. The City does 
not want to set a dangerous precedence and apologized that Mr. Tobin has 

been met with several road blocks prior to her arrival; however, there are 
some concerns that need to be addressed before moving forward. It was 
explained to her by Interim City Manager Kipp that the Council was advised 

to not move forward with the sale of the right of way. City Manager Rufus 
has reached out to professional individuals and entities who have assisted 

the City with such projects for input/advice on how the City should proceed.  
 
Interim DPW Director Kent Phillips stated at this moment, unsure of what is 

under the right of way and would be premature to say there is nothing there, 
and will have no effect on the City’s water and sewage operations.  
 

Tom Mead, Finance Director stated letting the property go free of charge 
with the hopes of not acquiring any additional closing costs, there are long 

term financial concerns for the City. 
 
John Tracy Director of Planning, Building & Code Enforcement provided the 

Council with a map overview of the right of way and surrounding parcels. 
The right away could be used as a key access point for the surrounding 

properties.  
 
Scott Kipp, Interim City Manager reiterated what was stated at the 

September 4th Council meeting. The potential development for the adjacent 
property is unknown and how the right of way could affect potential 

development is also unknown.  
 
Mayor Brown asked the following questions: 

1. Council has already approved.  
2. In reviewing the map provided tonight, do we have a sense of where 

the right of way would go? City Manager Rufus stated at this time 

that information is unknown. 



 

 

Page 4 of 5                                                                             Special Council minutes/11-14-18 

 

  

 

City Manager Rufus stated when speaking with Interim City Manager Kipp and 
the entire Administrative Staff, it is hard to say what is currently there, and 

cannot say what is going to be there because the potential development is 
unknown. A leasing option was presented to Council and is still a viable option, 
but to totally give away a right of way with not knowing what potential 

development could come to the area is not in the best interest of the City. At 
this time, unsure on how to proceed, will leave that up to the City Attorney. 

 
Council Member Brown stated the information presented at previous Council 
meetings was not the same as what was presented tonight.  

 
City Attorney Harkness stated the Council approved the sale of the property. If 

the Council is no longer interested in moving in that direction, our Council rules 
provide an option to resend a vote that has been previously taken. For this 
particular situation, the Council can resend the vote if they wish to do so.  

 
Additional comments were received by Council Member Brown and Mayor 

Brown.  
 

VIII.  Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) 

 
Brown moved, Spicer supported to excuse Council Members Barnes, Reid, 

and French. (4-0, vv) 
 
IX.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to no more 

than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 

 

Comments were received from LaRose Bradley, 312 Arthur Street, Elizabeth 
Craig, 802 Austin Avenue, Eric Tobin, 409 W. Ash Street, Chris Tobin, 409 W. Ash 
Street, and Daniel Farmer, 1101 Weiner Drive.   

 
X.  City Manager Report 

 
 City Manager Rufus thanked Council and Albion residents for allowing her to 

become adjusted in the position.   

 
XI.  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Comments were received from Council Members Brown and Lawler. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to ADJOURN Special Council Session. 

(4-0, vv). 
 

Mayor Brown adjourned the Special Session at 8:42 p.m. 
 



 

 

Page 5 of 5                                                                             Special Council minutes/11-14-18 

 

  

 

 
__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Haley Snyder  
          Deputy Clerk/Treasurer 

 



 

Page 1 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/11-19-18 

 

 

City of Albion 
Study Session 

November 19, 2018 Minutes 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

II.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT:  
 
Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), Jeanette Spicer (5) and 
Andrew French (6) and Mayor Brown.  
 
ABSENT: Maurice Barnes (1) 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
 
LaTonya Rufus, City Manager; Scott Kipp, Chief Public Safety; Cullen Harkness, 
City Attorney; Jill Domingo, City Clerk; Haley Snyder, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer; Tom 
Mead, Finance Director and Kent Phillips, Interim Director Public Services. 
 

III.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 
 

A. 2019 Budget 
 

Finance Director Mead gave an overview of the following funds: 
 

 Component Units 248 & 275 
 

Fund 248-DDA 

 The capture for 2017 was negative so no tax revenue reflected.  For 2018 and 
2019, a positive capture will occur, however, most of this capture must be paid 
to the Hotel Brownfield. 

 Account 248-000-402.10 represents reimbursement from the State as a result 
of the new personal property tax reform law.  The State is now requesting that 
these reimbursements be reflected in account 248-000-573.00 

 Dept 693-Peabody Building Project is a federal grant which will be a pass 
through the DDA Fund. The grant money will come in to the City and will be 
passed on to the contractor.  The total grant amount is $828,800.  $800,000 is 
for building renovation and the $28,800 is for fees. 

 Dept 735-Appropriations/Administrative Fees- 2017 represents a 3% increase 
over preceding year; 2018 represents a 4% increase over preceding year and 



 

Page 2 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/11-19-18 

 

 

2019-the increase reflects the additional time required for the administration of 
the Brownfield hotel property. 

 Account 248-735-880-00 covers the annual summer car show 
 Account 248-735-999-00 the transfer out in 2018 & 2019 represents the DDA 

tax capture that must be paid/transferred to the Downtown Hotel Brownfield. 
 Dept 806-Ismon House Renovation-no activity for 2017, 2018 or 2019 
 2018 will end will a projected $8,354 profit and a projected $10,250 profit in 

2019.   
 The ending fund balance in 2018 will be $62,879 and $73,129 in 2019. 

 
Comments were received from Council Member Brown. 

 
Fund 275-ABA 

 Account 275-000-591 is for loan from ABA to EDC to purchase property.  Loan 
matures 1-10-2021 

 Account 275-000-671 revenue received from Adams Sign Company for 
billboard rental at the train station-$2800.00/year 

 Administrative fees reflect a 2% increase over preceding year 
 Dept 264/EDC Buildings-reflects $135,000 for sale of EDC Building 
 Dept 265/201 N. Clinton St-receive $1.00 per month rent revenue from A.G. 

Edwards.  A.G. Edwards also pays $125.00 per month in lieu of property taxes 
and all utilities for the building.  Note: The City may need to increase the 
amount of in lieu property taxes that are being paid as the amount of the taxes 
have increased beyond the $125.00 per month. 

 Dept 270-101 Gale St-An agreement with Albion Department of Public Safety to 
cover expenses for this building in lieu of rent.  However, the ABA did replace 
the roof on the building in 2018. 

 Dept 271-Fire/Ambulance Building-Rent is received from A.D.P.S. and Huron 
Valley Ambulance for the building.  Per an agreement with Huron Valley 
Ambulance, 40% of the excess of revenue over expenses from the previous 
year is to be paid back to Huron Valley Ambulance. 

 Dept 273-Food Hub-ABA does not include many expenses for the Food Hub 
although they did pay for a structural expense in 2018. 
 

Comments were received from Council Member Brown. 
 

 Debt Service Funds 363,364,369 & 374 
 

Fund 363-Generator Bonds 

 This bond was for energy study and subsequent energy improvements around 
the City including a generator.  Departments that benefited from these 
improvements pay into the fund and the annual payment is made. Bond 
matures 10-1-2024 
 

Fund 364-General Obligation Bond for Water Project 



 

Page 3 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/11-19-18 

 

 

 This bond matured on 10-1-2017 so no tax levy or debt service required for 
2018.  Bond payments made to Capital One Bank.  This is a general obligation 
tax bond.  Received revenue in 2018 from 2017 taxes.  The misc. expense will 
be to close out the fund as it is no longer needed. 
 

Fund 369-Albion Building Authority Bond 

 This bond was used for the construction of the ambulance/fire station and for 
the renovation and expansion at Maple Grove Apartments.  Bond matures on 
10-1-2028. 
 

Fund 374-DPW Building Debt 

 The loan was for the purchase of the Street Dept/Equipment Pool Garage.  
Payments are made to Calhoun County and the bond matures on 7-1-2023. 
 

 Trust Funds 732,735 & 737 
 

Fund 732-Public Safety Pension 
 

 Public Safety Trust is money invested that will be used to cover Public Safety 
Officers pensions.  This is 158-160% funded which is almost unheard of.  Our 
funding of this pension fund is discussed around the State. 
 

Comments were received from Council Member Brown. 
 

Fund 735-Albion Trust 

 Revenue for the Albion Trust is from interest from investments and gains and 
losses.  This fund has provided for gifts to the City and the Ismon House in 
previous years. 
 

Fund 737-Retiree Health Care 

 This retiree health plan was first offered by the City around 2003 and was 
discontinued around 2010.  When discontinued, an offer was extended to all 
members to get their money back or have it rolled to the City’s current retiree 
health plan.  Almost all elected to get their money back.  However, 5 who were 
retired or close to retirement elected to stay in the plan.  They each receive a 
monthly benefit paid out from this fund ranging from $24 to $48 per month. 
 

 Misc. Funds 208 & 250 
 

Fund 208-Recreation Fund 

 Account 208-780-590 Local Grants-Initially in 2018 we budgeted $20,000 for 
the Cronin Foundation Grant but since the new recreation millage was passed, 
we will not be receiving the grant.  Additionally, we had to return the $3,700 to 
the Community Foundation since a particular program didn’t get initiated in the 
proper timeframe.  However, we will be re-applying for the grant. 



 

Page 4 of 4                                                                               study session minutes/11-19-18 

 

 

 Account 208-780-941-00 $25,000 represents the rental of the school from 
Marshall Public Schools. 

 There is a projected $11,000 loss in 2018 with a projected profit of just under 
$500.00 for 2019. 

 The recreation fund received an additional $30,000 from the increased millage 
which was used for program expenses and a $1575.00 increase in the amount 
given to the Senior Forks Center. 

 The 2018 Recreation fund balance is projected to be $94,008 and projected 
fund balance of $95,348 in 2019. 

 
Comments were received from Council Member Brown who asked what additional 
programs would the increased millage provide. 

 
Additional comments were received from Council Member Spicer. 
 
Fund 250-CDBG Fund 

 No grants currently 
 Earns a small amount of interest 
 If a home sells, depending on the agreement, they may be required to pay back 

the grant amount 
 There are approximately 30 properties that received grants from this fund. 

 
Comments were received from Council Member Brown. 

 
IV.   PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 
        comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 
 

No public comments were received. 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Brown moved, French supported, CARRIED, to ADJOURN Study Session. (6-0, vv). 
 
Mayor Brown adjourned the Study Session at 6:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo    
        City Clerk 

 



 

 

Page 1 of 5                                                                             Council minutes/11-19-18 

 

  

 

City of Albion 
Council Session Minutes  

November 19, 2018 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Brown called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 
III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), Jeanette 
Spicer (5), Andrew French (6) and Mayor Brown.   
 
ABSENT: Maurice Barnes (1) was absent. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
 
LaTonya Rufus, City Manager; Scott Kipp, Chief Public Safety; Cullen Harkness, 
City Attorney, Jill Domingo, City Clerk; Kent Phillips, Interim Director Public 
Services; Tom Mead, Finance Director, Larry Williams, Recreation Director and 
Haley Snyder, Deputy Clerk Treasurer. 
 

V.     PRESENTATIONS-None 
   
VI.    PUBLIC HEARINGS-None 
   
VII.   PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper 
decorum is required.) 

 
Comments were received from Dave Atchison, 108 W. Erie St and Nancy 
McFarlane, National Trailways Alliance. 
 

VIII.  CONSENT CALENDAR (vv) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on as one 
unit) 

 
 

IX.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 
 



 

 

Page 2 of 5                                                                             Council minutes/11-19-18 

 

  

 

A. Request Approval 2nd Reading & Adoption of Ordinance # 2018-08, Ethics 
Ordinance  

 
Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness who suggested on 
page 4 that the 3/5 vote should be changed to a majority vote. 
 
Council Member French made a motion to change the 3/5 vote to a super 
majority vote. 
 
Comments were received from Council Members Brown, Mayor Brown and 
City Attorney Harkness. 
 
French moved, Reid supported, FAILED, to Change the 3/5 Vote to a Super 
Majority Vote. (2-4, rcv) (Brown, Lawler, Spicer and Mayor Brown dissenting). 
 
Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, To Approve 2nd Reading & 
Adoption of Ordinance # 2018-08, Code of Ethics as presented. (6-0, rcv) 
 

B. Request Approval Resolution # 2018-27, Review of Financial Qualifications of 
Candidates for Elective Office 
 
Comments were received from Council Members French and Brown; City 
Attorney Harkness; Mayor Brown and Finance Director Mead. 
 
Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, To Approve Resolution # 2018-
27, Review of Financial Qualifications of Candidates for Elective Office as 
presented. (6-0, rcv) 
 

C. Request Approval of City Manager Contract Amendment Relative to Moving 
Expense 

 
Comments were received from Council Member French and City Attorney 
Harkness. 
 
Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to Approve City Manager 
Contract Amendment Relative to Moving Expense as presented. (6-0, rcv) 
 

D. Request Approval Attorney Fees for Council Rules Review 
 

Comments were received from Council Members French and Brown; City 
Attorney Harkness and Mayor Brown. 
 
Brown moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, To Approve Attorney Fees for 
Council Rules Review as presented.  (6-0, rcv) 
 



 

 

Page 3 of 5                                                                             Council minutes/11-19-18 

 

  

 

E. Request Approval Project Rising Tide Fellow Agreement 
 
Comments were received from Council Members French and Brown; City 
Attorney Harkness and Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Snyder. 
 
Council Member Brown made a motion to amend the Rising Tide Fellow 
agreement on the 1st line to read: City of Albion represented by City Manager 
LaTonya Rufus. 
 
Brown moved, French supported, CARRIED, to Amend the Rising Tide Fellow 
Agreement on the 1st line to read: City of Albion Represented by City 
Manager LaTonya Rufus. (6-0, vv) 
 
Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED to Approve the Project Rising 
Tide Fellow Agreement with the above Amendment. (6-0, rcv) 
 

F. Request Approval Resolution # 2018-28, A Resolution to Approve the 
Development Project Agreement with the Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources and the City of Albion River Trail Expansion Project 

 
Comments were received from Council Members French and Brown; City 
Manager Rufus and Chief Public Safety Kipp. 

 
French moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, To Approve Resolution # 2018-
28, A Resolution to Approve the Development Project Agreement with the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources and the City of Albion River Trail 
Expansion Project as presented. (6-0, rcv) 
 

G. Request Approval 2019 Meeting Dates 
 

Comments were received from Mayor Brown. 
 
Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, To Approve the 2019 Meeting 
Dates as presented. (6-0, vv) 
 

H. Discussion/Approval of Setting Initial City Manager Goals 
 
Mayor Brown suggested the following City Manager Goals: 
 
1. Administration & Oversight 

 Continue to review administration policy and procedures 

 Review Staffing configurations 
 

2. Infrastructure 



 

 

Page 4 of 5                                                                             Council minutes/11-19-18 

 

  

 

 Assess funding options for sidewalks, street lights, street lighting 
and street signs. (research & report) 

 Options for high speed internet downtown (research & report) 

 Options for local transportation (research & report) 
 

3. Neighborhoods 

 Continue to improve code enforcement function for the City 

 Work with Neighborhood Planning Council 
 

4. Community & Economic Development 

 Food & child care options 

 Work with Planning sub-committee on zoning re-write 
 

5. Training 

 Attend trainings provided by MML and other agencies 
 

Comments were received from Council Members French, Brown, Spicer and 
Reid; Mayor Brown; City Attorney Harkness; City Manager Rufus and Chief 
Public Safety Kipp. 

 
Council Member Brown asked for a motion to amend approval of City Manager’s 
initial goals to include the goals outlined above pursuant to the City Manager’s 
contract. 

 
Comments were received from Council Member French and City Attorney 
Harkness. 

 
Brown moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve Amendment to include 
Approval of City Manager’s Initial Goals as Outlined Pursuant to the City 
Manager’s Contract. (6-0, vv) 

 
Spicer moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve Initial City Manager’s 
Goals as Outlined Pursuant to the City Manager’s Contract. (6-0, rcv) 
 

X.  Future Agenda Items 
 

The following items were requested for the next agenda: 
 

 Mayor Brown would like a Special meeting on Monday, November 26, 2018 
at 6:00 p.m. and a Budget Study Session on Tuesday, November 27, 2018 
at 6:00 p.m. 

 City Attorney Harkness would like a Resolution for Opt-Out Insurance  

 Council Member Brown would like a report on what additional programming 
will be available from Recreation 



 

 

Page 5 of 5                                                                             Council minutes/11-19-18 

 

  

 

 Council Member French would like the 2nd Reading & Adoption of the 
Amended Council Rules and Procedures 

 
XI.  Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) 
 

French moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, To Excuse Council Member 
Maurice Barnes (1) (6-0, vv) 

 
XII.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 
 

Comments were received from Al Smith, 1209 Adams St; Alyssa Priami, 310 E> 
Michigan Avenue; Polly Wilson, 606 W. Erie St; Alfredia Dysart-Drake, 1016 S> 
Superior St; Edna Williams, 12 W. Broadwell St, Apt 5 and Calhoun County 
Commissioner Gary Tompkins. 
 

XII. CITY MANAGER REPORT  
 

City Manager Rufus stated the following: 

 Water rates must be increased as we are not currently in compliance with 
the State as our water fund is not self-sustaining at this time. 

 She relies on Staff and Department Heads and we work as a team. 
 
XIV. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 

Comments were received from Council Member French and Mayor Brown. 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Spicer moved, Brown supported, CARRIED, to adjourn the regular session. (6-0, 
vv) 
 

Mayor Brown adjourned the Regular Session at 9:00 p.m. 
 
 
__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo   
        City Clerk 

 
 



CITY OF ALBION 
MICHIGAN 

 

CITY COUNCIL  

RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Rule Title Page 

1 Authority…………………………………………………………………………... 1 

2 Roles and Responsibilities of City Officials………………………………………. 2 

3 Oath of Office; Duties Assumed; Mayor Pro-Tempore Appointed……………….. 5 

4 Meetings of the City Council……………………………………………………… 5 

5 Standing Committees……………………………………………………………… 7 

6 Quorum……………………………………………………………………………. 7 

7 Conduct of Meetings………………………………………………………………. 8 

8 Publication of Notices……………………………………………………………... 9 

9 Public Participation………………………………………………………………... 10 

10 Agendas and Order of Business…………………………………………………… 12 

11 Resolutions………………………………………………………………………… 14 

12 Ordinances…………………………………………………………………………. 15 

13 Motions……………………………………………………………………………. 16 

14 Points of Order…………………………………………………………………….. 17 

15 Appeals…………………………………………………………………………….. 18 

16 Rescind…………………………………………………………………………….. 18 

17 Suspending the Rules……………………………………………………………… 18 

18 Reconsideration…………………………………………………………………… 18 

19 Voting…………………………………………………………………………….. 19 

20 Amendments; Repeal the Rules…………………………………………………… 20 

Appendix A Basic Parliamentary Information………………………………………………….. 22 

Appendix B Adjournment Sine Die Procedure…………………………………………………. 25 



1 

 

RULE 1. AUTHORITY 

(a) City Council meetings shall comply with the state constitution, the Open Meetings Act, the 

Home Rule City Act, the City Charter and all other pertinent law. 

(b) Regular and special meetings of the City Council shall be open to the public and the rules of 

procedure of the City Council shall provide citizens with reasonable opportunity to be heard.  

City Charter § 5.6(g). 

(c) These rules of procedure (i) provide for constructive and democratic meetings, (ii) establish 

common rules and procedures for deliberation and debate, (iii) are intended to help, not 

hinder, the business of the City Council, and (iv) expedite and facilitate the transaction of the 

business of the City Council in an orderly fashion. The failure to strictly observe any such 

rules shall not affect the jurisdiction of, or invalidate any action taken by, the City Council. 

(d) The following words or phrases shall have the following meanings: 

(1) Administration means the duly appointed and acting City Manager or that person’s 

designee. 

(2) City Council or Council means the duly elected or appointed and serving Mayor and 

Council Members. 

(3) Council Member or member are used interchangeably and means members of the City 

Council. 

(4) Dates - whenever a date in these rules for the doing or completion of an act falls on a 

Saturday, Sunday or holiday, such act shall be done or completed on the next succeeding 

day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or holiday. 

(5) Decision means a determination, action, vote or disposition upon a motion, proposal, 

recommendation, resolution, order, ordinance or measure on which a vote by City 

Council has occurred. 

(6) Meeting means the convening of a public body (the City Council) at which a quorum is 

present for the purpose of deliberating toward or rendering a decision on a public policy. 

(7) Procedural matters mean votes upon motions having no other purpose than to adjourn, to 

receive and file, to refer a matter, to approve the minutes or accept or decline an 

invitation may be taken by a voice vote and the Chair shall announce the result of the 

voting.  Upon any such matter, a majority of the quorum present shall be sufficient to 



2 

 

carry such a motion, unless the Charter or other rule shall specifically require a greater 

majority in any such matter. 

(8) Unanimous means that all the members of the City Council who are present voted the 

same way. 

(e) On all matters of procedure not addressed in these rules, the Council shall refer to the most 

current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order for guidance in developing procedures for the 

conduct of meetings and shall not be inconsistent with the standing rules and order of the 

Council and not contrary to the Albion City Charter or any existing laws of the State of 

Michigan. 

(f) The Mayor shall hold regular, weekly meetings or conference calls with the City Manager, 

typically on Wednesdays, to confer on city business and upcoming agendas. These 

conferences may include one or two other Council Members and may also include other City 

staff members.  It is expected that the City Attorney shall be present, as needed to provide 

legal counsel and perspective.  Flexibility shall be allowed from meeting to meeting. 

RULE 2. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY OFFICIALS 

(a) The City Council’s duties and authority, as established in the City Charter and other law is as 

follows: 

(1) Generally, the City Council is to “exercise all of the legislative and policy-making 

powers of the city and…provide for the performance of all duties and obligations 

imposed upon the city by law.”  City Charter §§ 5.1; 6.1. 

(2) The Council works only through ordinances, resolutions, or motions. Ordinances (i) may 

be required by law (e.g., to establish some types of authorities or to issue some type of 

bonds), (ii) are required for all acts for which there is a penalty for violation (e.g., city 

health, safety, traffic codes, etc.), and (iii) are needed for acts where the city wishes to 

regulate actions or conduct of persons other than city officers, employees and agents. 

Resolutions are normally limited to internal affairs or concerns of the city government 

(e.g., approval of contracts), though resolutions may be specifically authorized for other 

purposes. Motions, by themselves, as opposed to motions to approve a resolution or an 

ordinance, are generally limited to routine procedural matters and to making decisions 

placed before the body. 



3 

 

(3) The City Council, including the Mayor, acts as a body. The City Charter refers to the 

powers of the City Council, as opposed to the powers of individual Council members, or 

the Mayor. Therefore, individual Council members have no authority to act on behalf of 

or represent the city except as approved by an ordinance, resolution, or motion approved 

by the Council (e.g., designation to serve as a delegate to an MML body or to serve as the 

city’s representative on another body). 

(4) The city Council sets policy by its actions. The following actions all set policy but are not 

the only City Council actions that can establish policy: (i) budget approval, (ii) tax levies, 

(iii) approving borrowing, (iv) setting city utility rates and other fees and charges, (v) 

specially assessing for projects, (vi) approving contracts, (vii) adopting or amending 

ordinances, (viii) adopting resolutions, (ix) appointing members of boards and 

commissions, (x) appointing the City Manager and City Attorney, setting their 

compensation, and providing regular reviews, and (xi) assigning duties to, changing and 

consolidating city departments. 

(b) The Mayor’s duties and authority are as follows: 

(1) The Mayor is the ceremonial head and chief executive officer of the city and shall 

perform all duties provided or required of…[the mayor] by law or by the council.” City 

Charter § 5.4(a). The Mayor therefore serves when state or federal law specifies roles or 

responsibilities for a city’s “chief executive officer” or the mayor, or when the City 

Council by ordinance, resolution or motion authorizes or directs the Mayor to act. 

(2) The Mayor serves as the presiding officer of the Council but is a member of the Council 

with all the powers and duties of a Council member, including the right and duty to vote 

on questions before the Council. The Mayor advises the Council concerning the public 

affairs of the City and makes recommendations thereon. As a member of the City Council 

with voting rights, the Mayor does not have veto power. (This contrasts with strong-

mayor governments in which the mayor is not a member of the council/commission and 

has no voting rights.) 

(3) In emergencies, the Mayor has powers conferred by law upon peace officers and shall 

exercise such powers to prevent disorder, to preserve the public peace and health, and to 

provide for the safety of persons and property. City Charter § 5.4(e). 



4 

 

(4) The Mayor makes all appointments, subject to Council approval, unless law or ordinance 

requires appointment by another officer or agency. City Charter §§ 5.4(f), 8.2(b). Stated 

slightly differently, whenever a City appointment is to be made, the Mayor is empowered 

to make that appointment, subject to the City Council’s approval, unless state or federal 

law, the City Charter, or a City ordinance delegates the appointment to others. This 

generally applies to City bodies and City-related bodies. 

(c) The City Manager’s duties and authority are as follows: 

(1) The City Manager serves as “…the chief administrative office of the city.” The City 

Manager therefore serves when state or federal law specifies roles or responsibilities for a 

city’s “chief administrative officer.” The City Manager exercises and performs all 

administrative functions of the City that are not imposed by law, the Charter or ordinance 

upon another official. No other city officer may perform the City Manager’s duties. City 

Charter § 7.2(e). 

(2) The role of chief administrative officer includes broad authority including responsibility 

for all City administrative departments and personnel. The City Manager is to implement 

City personnel policies and enter into employment agreements with City employees. 

(3) The City Manager is to advise the Council and recommend to the Council adoption of 

such measures the Manager deems necessary or expedient. 

(4) The City Manager attends Council meetings with the right to take part in discussion, but 

without the right to vote. 

(5) More specific duties and responsibilities of the City Manager include: 

(i) Enforcing all ordinances unless otherwise provided in the Charter, in the ordinance or 

by law. 

(ii) Appointing the emergency preparedness coordinator and the planning and community 

development director. City Code § 2-148. 

(iii) Proposing an annual budget to the City Council and administering the annual budget 

approved by the City Council. 

(iv) Performing other duties as may be prescribed by ordinance or by direction of the 

Council. 

(v) Adopting administrative regulations. City Code § 2-61. 



5 

 

(vi) Acting as the City’s purchasing agent or designating another purchasing agent and 

overseeing purchasing. City Code § 2-383. 

(vii) Recommending to the Council to prescribe by ordinance additional powers and 

duties to city officers and departments. City Charter § 8.17. 

(6) The City Manager serves at the pleasure of and is accountable to the City Council. Note, 

if there is a vacancy in the office of City Manager, the City Council must appoint non-

elected person to serve as an interim City Manager. City Charter § 7.2(f). 

(d) The City Attorney’s duties and authority are as follows: 

(1) The City Attorney serves as legal adviser to: (i) the City Council concerning the 

performance of its functions and duties, (ii) the Clerk, Treasurer, Assessor and City 

Manager concerning their statutory and Charter duties, and (iii) City boards. The City 

Attorney attends Council meetings. 

(2) The City Attorney prosecutes violations of City ordinances and represents the City in 

civil and administrative proceedings. 

(3) The City Attorney prepares or reviews ordinances, regulations, contracts, bonds and other 

instruments. 

(4) The City Attorney provides legal opinions regarding the documents the City Attorney 

reviews and on such other matters as requested, filing a copy with the Clerk. 

(5) The City Attorney performs other duties as prescribed by law, the Charter or the Council. 

(e) The Police Chief or a police officer designated by the Police Chief shall serve as sergeant-at-

arms for the City Council during its meetings to assist in the preservation of order and, while 

serving that role, shall serve at the direction of the Mayor or other chair of the meeting. 

RULE 3. OATH OF OFFICE; DUTIES ASSUMED; MAYOR PRO TEM APPOINTED 

(a) On the first Monday in December following their election, newly elected members of City 

Council shall take the oath of office and assume the duties of their office. City Charter § 5.3. 

See Appendix B: Sine Die Procedure. 

(b) On the first Monday in December after each City general election, the City Council shall 

appoint one of its elected members to serve as Mayor Pro Tem. City Charter § Section 5.5. 

RULE 4. MEETINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 



6 

 

(a) Regular Meetings - Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held each month on the 

days prescribed by resolution beginning at 7:00 p.m. Each calendar year there shall be posted 

within 10 days after the first meeting of the Council a public notice stating the dates, times 

and places of the regular meetings. If there is a change in the schedule of regular meetings, a 

notice shall be posted within 3 days after the meeting at which the change is made listing the 

new dates, times and places of the regular meetings. Open Meetings Act; City Charter § 5.6. 

(b) Special Meetings - Special meetings of the council shall be held at the regular meeting place 

of the council or at an alternate meeting place when notice of such alternate meeting place is 

posted at the main entrance to the city hall during such meeting. Special meetings shall be 

called by the clerk on the written request of the mayor, or of any two (2) members of the 

council. If the capacity of the Council chambers is deemed insufficient to hold the audience 

that wishes to attend the council meeting, council may decide to move the meeting to a larger 

venue. City Charter § 5.6. 

 

At least eighteen 18 hours written notice shall be given designating the time and purpose of a 

special meeting. Such notice shall be given personally by the clerk to each member of the 

council or written notice may be left at their usual place of residence or business by the clerk 

or by someone designated by him. A copy of such notice shall also be delivered at the place 

of business of each newspaper printed and published in the city, but this requirement shall 

not be jurisdictional to the holding of any such meeting. Such notice shall also be posted on 

the City’s website. 

(c) Study Sessions - In addition to regular and special meetings, the Council may hold study 

sessions from time to time for gathering information and for deliberating towards a decision 

on any matter. All actions and final decisions shall be made only at a subsequent regular or 

special meeting. The study sessions shall be open to the public and shall comply with the 

posting requirements of Act 267, Michigan Public Acts for 1976, as may be amended. For 

the purpose of posting only, the study sessions shall be considered as special meetings. 

(d) Closed Sessions - In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268, the council may 

meet in a closed session only for one or more of the permitted purposes following a roll call 

vote: 



7 

 

(1) To consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges 

brought against, or to consider a periodic personnel evaluation of, a public officer, 

employee, staff member, or individual agent, if the named person requests a closed 

hearing (that request may be withdrawn at any time) 

(2) For strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective 

bargaining agreement if either negotiating party requests a closed hearing 

(3) Upon a 2/3 vote of the members elected or appointed, to consider the purchase or lease of 

real property up to the time an option to purchase or lease that real property is obtained. 

(4) Upon a 2/3 vote of the members elected or appointed, to consult with its attorney 

regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with specific pending litigation, but 

only if an open meeting would have a detrimental financial effect on the litigating or 

settlement position of the city. 

(5) Upon a 2/3 vote of the members elected or appointed, to review and consider the contents 

of an application for employment or appointment to a public office if the candidate 

requests that the application remain confidential.  However, all interviews by the city for 

employment or appointment to a public office shall be held in an open meeting pursuant 

to the Open Meetings Act. 

(6) Upon a 2/3 vote of the members elected or appointed, to consider material exempt from 

discussion or disclosure by state or federal statute.  (This is the basis for a closed session 

discussion of written legal opinions.) 

RULE 5. STANDING COMMITTEES 

There shall be no standing committees of the City Council. This does not, however, prohibit 

the designation of three (3) or fewer Council Members working together, without 

compensation, to gather information and/or research a specific subject and to report back to 

the full City Council at a later date. City Charter § 5.6(b). 

RULE 6. QUORUM 

At any regular or special meeting, four (4) members of the City Council shall be a quorum 

for the transaction of business. In the absence of a quorum, any number of members less than 

a quorum may adjourn any regular or special meeting. City Charter § 5.6(h). Regular 



8 

 

meetings that have been adjourned due to a lack of a quorum shall have the agenda material 

carried over to the next regular meeting unless a special meeting is scheduled prior to that 

time to deal with those items. Special meetings adjourned due to a lack of quorum shall be 

rescheduled to a date determined by the authority who called for the meeting. Notices shall 

be posted in accordance with state law. 

RULE 7. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS 

(a) Chair - The Mayor, or in the Mayor’s absence, the Mayor Pro Tempore, shall be the Chair 

and preside over the meetings. If both the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tempore are absent, the 

City Clerk shall call the City Council to order and call the roll. If a quorum is present, the 

Council shall elect, by a majority of those members present, a temporary Chair to act until 

the Mayor or the Mayor Pro Tempore appear. 

(1) The Chair’s role is to serve the Council by implementing these rules of procedure to 

facilitate the orderly conduct of Council business. 

(2) The Chair represents the Council during the meeting, declaring the Council’s will and 

obeying the Council’s commands resulting from motions and other actions in accordance 

with these rules of procedure. 

(3) The role as Chair is in addition to any other roles the Chair may have as Mayor, Mayor 

Pro Tem, or as another Council Member. 

(b) Preservation of Order - The Chair shall conduct the meeting, arrange the seating, preserve 

decorum, and decide, subject to appeal, questions of order and the interpretation of these 

rules. Appeals of such interpretation may be made by any Council Member present. The City 

Attorney normally shall be the advisor of the Chair on any point of order or procedure under 

these rules. Council Members shall remain seated, unless needing to leave the Council 

chamber on an urgent matter, refrain from private discourse, and refrain from electronic 

communication while the Council is in session. A Council Member speaking may be 

interrupted only: (i) when the Chair determines the speaking Council Member is out of order, 

(ii) for a point of order, (iii) when asked to yield, or (iv) when such interruption is needed to 

restore order due to the inappropriate conduct of others. 

If attempts to restore order by calls to do so, instruction, and use of the gavel are 

unsuccessful, the Chair may: (i) call a recess, (ii) adjourn the meeting, or (iii) request that the 



9 

 

police officer serving as sergeant-at-arms for that meeting remove any person(s) engaging in 

conduct that is out of order. Rule § 2(e). 

(c) Council Members - When a Council Member wishes to speak, the Council Member shall 

respectfully request the Chair’s recognition. If two or more Council Members wish to speak, 

the Chair shall normally first recognize the Council Member who asked the item to be placed 

on the agenda, then recognize the maker of the motion, and then recognize Council Members 

in the order they requested to speak. The Council Member seeks recognition by raising their 

hand. Council Members shall confine their comments and statements to the question under 

consideration. No Council Member shall speak more than twice on any question until every 

other Councilperson has had an opportunity to speak at least once on the subject under 

debate. No Council Member shall speak for more than ten minutes on an agenda item without 

approval from the Council which may be granted by the Chair if there are no objections from 

other Council Members or by a majority vote of the members present. A Council Member 

may participate in a meeting via telephone or other comparable telecommunications 

equipment, however, no Council Member may vote on any item of business or parliamentary 

matter unless the Council Member is physically present at the meeting. 

(1) Calling A Member To Order - If any Council Member, in speaking or otherwise, fails to 

comply with these, the Chair shall, either unilaterally or following a point of order by 

another Council Member, call the offending Council Member to order. The question of 

order shall be decided by the Chair, without debate, subject to appeal. 

(2) Personal comments about, attacks against, or imputing the motive of other Council 

Members, City Staff members, or members of the public are out of order. 

(d) Legal Counsel - The Chair, on the Chair’s own initiative or at the request of a Council 

Member, may call upon the City’s legal counsel in any meeting of the Council, to advise the 

Council upon any pertinent question of law. A decision by the Chair not to seek the advice of 

the City’s legal counsel when sought by a Council Member may be appealed. 

(e) As outlined in the City Charter, the City Manager may participate in Council discussions but 

may not vote on any matter. City Charter § 7.2(d)(2). 

RULE 8. PUBLICATION OF NOTICES 



10 

 

Official notices or proceedings requiring publication or posting shall be displayed on the 

bulletin board located in City Hall or on the City’s official web site. In the event publication 

is required by law in a newspaper of general circulation, The Recorder, and the Albion E-

News which are circulated in Albion, are designated as the official newspapers for the City of 

Albion. 

RULE 9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Members of the audience attending regular or special meetings shall have a reasonable 

opportunity to be heard, except as otherwise may be provided by law, as follows: 

(a) Regular and Special Meetings - The Chair will recognize each person wishing to make 

comments and the person shall state the person’s name, address and group affiliation (if 

appropriate) prior to speaking. No citizen shall speak more than once during each of the 

following segments unless permission is given either by the Chair, if there is no objection 

from any Council Member, or upon a motion of the Council. 

(1) Public Hearings - When a public hearing on a matter has been scheduled, City Council 

will hear and consider any comments presented by interested parties or audience 

members on the specific subject of the hearing. The Chair may, if appropriate, limit the 

amount of time per person based on the requests and determine when the public has had 

its opportunity to be heard. Public speakers may address the council on the issue of the 

public hearing for one three (3) minute period. 

(2) Public Comment - At the appointed times at the beginning of regular and special 

meetings, speakers may address the City Council on agenda items only, for one three (3) 

minute period. Additionally, at the conclusion of the agenda, speakers may address the 

council on any issue they wish to speak, also for one three (3) minute period. 

(b) Study Sessions - At the conclusion of the Special Meeting agenda, speakers may address the 

council on any issue they wish to speak, also for one three (3) minute period. 

(c) No Response - Public hearings and public comment periods are times to hear from the public.  

Therefore, the Chair and other Council Members shall refrain from answer questions, 

correcting speakers or otherwise responding or reacting to any comments until after the 

public hearing or public comment period is closed and Council comments are appropriate 

under the agenda item. 



11 

 

(d) Time Deviation - Time allowed for a speaker during a public hearing or public comment 

period may be extended beyond the three (3) minute limit for good reason either by the Chair 

if there is no objection from any Council Member or upon a motion of the Council. Good 

reason for allowing more time includes, for example and not for limitation, that a speaker is 

representing a group and the extension of time granted the speaker will reduce the numbers 

of persons who speak and the overall time expended, the complexity of the issue addressed, 

and other reasons as determined by the Council. The time allowed for speaking may for good 

reason also be further limited, either by the Chair if there is no objection from any Council 

Member or upon a motion of the Council. Good reason for further limiting the time allowed 

includes, for example and not for limitation, the number and complexity of agenda items and 

the number of persons wishing to address the City Council. 

(e) Conduct of Speakers and Audience Members - Comments (i) are to be loud enough to be 

audible but not so loud as to be inappropriate for a meeting, (ii) must avoid coarse language 

or cursing, (iii) may not include personal attacks, (iv) may not be addressed to anyone other 

than the Council or the Chair, and (v) may involve a single speaker (except when the speaker 

requires assistance). Comments may not include demonstrations, or materials that, when 

used, could be hazardous or unduly disruptive to the meeting. To preserve the order and 

decorum of Council meetings, the audience shall refrain from cheering and applauding 

during the course of the meeting. 

(f) Disorderly Conduct - The Chair may call to order any person or persons who are being 

disruptive, disorderly, speaking out of turn or beyond the allotted time, etc. Such persons 

shall promptly obey the rulings of the Chair if called to order. If the person fails to obey the 

ruling, the Chair may direct the removal of the person from this meeting. 

(g) Written Communication: The Council shall accept written comments and copies of any 

submitted materials will be distributed to all Council Members. Individuals or groups are 

encouraged to submit written comments to the City Council via mail, e-mail or delivered to 

the City Clerk’s office for distribution. If requested by the writer, the communication may be 

added to the appropriate agenda for receipt and/or action as deemed appropriate by the City 

Council.  Written comments may be submitted during the meeting. They may, with 

permission of the Chair, be handed to the Clerk for distribution to the Council. 



12 

 

(h) Handouts, Supporting Materials, Photographs, Etc. - Persons wishing to provide copies of 

comments, handouts, presentations, supporting materials, photographs, etc., are encouraged 

to submit such items to the City Clerk’s office prior to the start of the meeting for distribution 

to the City Council. The use of audio or electronically displayed materials by citizens during 

public comment segments is not allowed. An exception may be given if prior permission is 

given by the chair and the material is provided to the City Clerk’s office at least two (2) 

business days prior to a meeting. Materials shall be appropriate for viewing by all and 

consistent with the public comment requirements in Rule 9(e). Electronic materials shall be 

compatible with City equipment and software. 

RULE 10. AGENDAS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS 

(a) Regular Meeting Agendas - The City Clerk, with the City Manager and supporting staff, shall 

be responsible for the preparation of the agenda and supporting material for each regular 

meeting as follows: 

(1) Requests by the Mayor, City Council Members, or the Administration for resolutions and 

documents to come before the City Council at any regular meeting shall be submitted to 

the City Clerk and City Manager before 12:00 p.m. EST on the Wednesday prior to the 

next council meeting. 

(2) As permitted by the City Charter, the Mayor, City Council Members, or the 

Administration may add items to the agenda at any time before noon on the day of the 

Council meeting. Agenda items added to the agenda after 12:00 p.m. EST on the 

Wednesday prior to the City Council meeting shall generally be considered only for 

discussion at that meeting. If the item is a matter of urgency or emergency due to 

circumstances arising after the Wednesday preceding the meeting or if the item is a 

matter that requires no additional research or background and has general consensus from 

Council Members, the item added after the general agenda deadline may be considered 

for action by the City Council during that meeting. 

(3) The agenda shall be furnished to the City Council on the Thursday prior to the regular 

meeting. On the day following delivery of the agenda to the City Council, if practicable, 

the agenda will be available on the City’s web site and a paper copy can be viewed at the 

City Clerk’s office during normal business hours. 



13 

 

(4) The City Council may by an affirmative vote of at least five (5) members approve the 

addition, modification, or removal of agenda items. Motions to add, modify, or remove 

an item or topic on the agenda shall occur during the Approval of the Agenda portion of 

the meeting. 

(5) Except for routine items, an agenda shall not request final action on any item for which 

that agenda is the first communication about that item. 

(b) Special Meeting Agendas - When necessary, the City Clerk shall prepare an agenda for 

special meetings, in consultation with the Mayor or requesting City Council Members, and 

the Administration, based on a written request for a special meeting. No additional Agenda 

items can be added during a Special Meeting. 

(c) Order of Business for Regular Meetings - The order of business at any regular meeting, not a 

special meeting or study session, shall be as follows: 

 Call to Order 

 Moment of Silence 

 Pledge of Allegiance 

 Roll Call 

 Approval of the Agenda (Includes any proposed additions, deletions, or other changes to the 

agenda) 

 Presentations and Recognitions (These items include proclamations, commendations and 

recognitions or items prepared by the administration, City boards and commissions, or other City-

related agencies.  Presentations shall be limited to 10 minutes or less unless the extended either by the 

Chair if there is no objection from any Council Member or upon a motion of the Council.) 

 Public Hearings (Resolutions and/or ordinances applicable to a public hearing shall be considered 

immediately following the hearing.) 

 Agenda Public Comment - Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to agenda items only, and to no more than 3 minutes. Proper decorum is 

required. Please state your name and address. 

 Closed Session 

 Consent Agenda (Includes approval of all minutes of meetings called by council—i.e. regular, 

special, study session—routine permits and other routine approvals, routine bid awards, routine 

approvals of bills and payments, scheduling of special meetings or study sessions, scheduling of public 

hearings, and other routine matters. At the request of any Council Member a consent agenda item 



14 

 

shall be removed from the consent agenda and considered under the Items for Individual Action or 

Discussion section of the agenda.) 

 Items for Individual Action or Discussion (The work of the council; approval of resolutions, 

ordinances, postponed items, action of the City Manager that requires approval of Council, Council 

items of discussion, approval of board appointments, Approval of contracts, etc.) 

 Future Agenda Items (The Mayor, City Council Members, or the Administration may request or 

propose items or topics for action or discussion by the City Council at a future meeting.) 

 Public Comment - Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to 

not more than three (3) minutes. Proper decorum is required. Please state your name 

and address. 

 City Manager Report 

 Mayor and Council Member Comments 

 Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member(s) 

 Roll Call (Unless they are present for both roll calls or excused, Council Members will be recorded 

as inexcusably absent from the meeting.) 

 Adjournment 

(d) Order of Business for Special Meetings - The order of business at any special meeting shall 

be the same as the order of business at any regular meeting, except that no items may be 

added to the agenda if the items were not included in the notice of the special meeting. A 

special meeting agenda may be modified to the extent that items may be tabled, postponed, 

or removed from the agenda. 

(e) Order of Business for Study Sessions - The order of business at any study session shall be as 

follows: 

 Call to Order 

 Roll Call 

 Items for Individual Discussion (No action shall be taken by council, but a consensus maybe be 

sought) 

 Public Comment - Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their comments to 

not more than three (3) minutes. Proper decorum is required. Please state your name 

and address. 

 City Manager Report 

 Mayor and Council Member Comments 



15 

 

 Adjournment 

RULE 11. RESOLUTIONS 

(a) A resolution or motion shall be limited to matters required or permitted to be done by the 

Charter, or by state or federal laws, or pertaining to the internal affairs, or concerns of the 

city government. Except when it is impractical to do so or for procedural motions, all 

resolutions, and long or complicated motions or amendments, shall be in writing before being 

acted upon by the City Council. 

(b) Upon the reading by the Mayor of the title of the resolution, and a brief summary, it shall be 

for any member of the City Council to move for its adoption. City Council Members can 

request the Mayor to allow for explanatory or clarifying comments from the City Manager or 

relevant staff member before an initial motion is made. Before the question is put to a vote, 

an opportunity for debate, amendment or other appropriate action shall be afforded the City 

Council. 

(c) A resolution is an official City Council action in the form of a motion adopted by an 

affirmative vote of at least four (4) members, unless otherwise provided by law. A resolution 

becomes effective on the same day on which it is adopted unless a subsequent date is 

contained within the resolution. 

RULE 12. ORDINANCES 

(a) An ordinance is a legislative act establishing a more permanent influence on the City other 

than a resolution and requires greater formalities in its adoption. In addition to other acts 

required by law or by specific provision of the City Charter to be adopted by ordinance, acts 

which do any of the following shall be by ordinance: 

(1) Each proposed ordinance shall be introduced in written form. The style of all ordinances 

passed by the council shall be, "The City of Albion Ordains:” 

(2) No ordinance shall be passed at the same meeting at which it is introduced, unless it is 

declared to be an emergency ordinance by a vote of not less than five (5) members of the 

council. 

(3) An ordinance may be repealed or amended only by an ordinance passed in the manner 

provided in this section. 



16 

 

(4) An ordinance may be repealed by reference to its number or title only. 

(5) If a section of an ordinance is amended, such section shall be re-enacted and published at 

length. This requirement shall not apply to zoning ordinance amendments or to the 

schedules of one-way streets and of parking limitations contained in any traffic 

ordinance. 

(6) Each ordinance, after adoption, shall be identified by a number. 

(7) Each ordinance shall be recorded by the clerk forthwith in the ordinance book, and the 

enactment of such ordinance shall be certified by him therein by his signature. 

RULE 13. MOTIONS 

(a) Generally - All motions shall be moved and seconded before being considered. All motions, 

especially long or complicated motions shall be put in writing, except when it is impractical 

to do so or for procedural motions. An opportunity for debate, amendments, or other 

appropriate action, shall be afforded the members of the City Council, except as otherwise 

stated in these rules. Each amendment proposed shall be considered a separate question. 

(b) Debate - Council Members wishing to speak during debate shall first obtain the approval of 

the Chair and each member who speaks shall address the Council. A Council member cannot 

speak against his or her own motion, but may vote in the negative. The member making the 

motion may speak on it first, if he or she expresses a desire to do so. 

(c) Withdrawal - A Council Member, with the consent of the supporting Council Member, may 

modify or withdraw his or her motion provided no member objects if the motion is modified 

or withdrawn. If a member objects to the withdrawal of a motion and a second is received, a 

vote is immediately taken on the request to withdraw the motion. Friendly revisions to 

motions agreed to by the Council Member moving and seconding the motion may be made. 

(d) Passage - Passage of all procedural motions or appeals of the Chair shall be on the 

affirmative vote of at least a majority of those Council Members present, unless otherwise 

provided for by law, the Albion City Charter, or by these rules. Approvals of any ordinance, 

resolution or other official Council action requires the affirmative vote of at least four (4) 

Council Members, unless a larger majority is required by law. 

(e) Motion Under Consideration - Whenever a main motion or question is under consideration, 

no other motion can be made except: 



17 

 

 to adjourn - undebatable 

 to rise to a question or privilege - undebatable 

 to lay on the table - undebatable 

 to call for the previous question - undebatable 

 to limit or extend limits of debate - undebatable 

 to postpone to a certain day - undebatable 

 to commit or refer, or recommit, to a committee - undebatable 

 to amend - debatable 

 to postpone indefinitely – debatable 

See Appendix A: Basic Parliamentary Information for further details regarding handling 

the various types of motions. 

(f) Division of Question - On the call of any member, supported by a majority vote of the 

members present, a division of any question shall be made when the question will admit of a 

division so distinct that if one part be taken away, the other will stand as an entire question 

for decision. 

(g) Ask for Previous Question - When the previous question is moved, it shall be put in these 

words: “I move the previous question.” This shall be ordered only by 2/3 majority of the 

members present. The effect of the previous question shall be to put an end to all debate and 

to bring the Council to a direct vote on the pending question or questions in their order down 

to, and including, the main question. If the previous question is not ordered, the consideration 

of the subject shall be resumed as though no motion for the previous question has been made. 

(h) Questions Put and Calling Roll - Questions shall be distinctly put in the following form: “All 

in favor say ‘Yes’.” And after the affirmative vote is expressed, “All opposed, ‘No’.” The 

Mayor may order a roll call vote, but a roll call vote is mandatory upon the request of any 

member or on the following actions of Council or a Committee of the Council: ordinances, 

resolutions, the appointment or election of officers, except as provided otherwise by law or 

the rules of the Council. The calling of the roll shall be on a rotating basis, so as to permit 

Council Members to first vote on an equal basis. It shall be the privilege of any member of 

the council to change his or her vote upon any question prior to the announcement of the vote 

by the Mayor. 



18 

 

(i) Debate During Roll - While the Mayor is putting any question, or once roll call voting has 

started, there shall be no interruption. 

RULE 14. POINT OF ORDER 

When a member believes the rules are not being followed, a member may demand the ruling 

of the Chair. The Chair shall promptly rule and enforce the rules, if appropriate. The Chair’s 

ruling on a Point of Order may be appealed. 

RULE 15. APPEALS 

Any Council Member may appeal a ruling/decision of the Chair and the appeal is debatable.  

The Chair shall then put the question, generally phrased as, “Shall the decision of the Chair 

stand as the decision of the Council?” If adopted, the ruling of the Chair is sustained (stands); 

otherwise, it is overruled (ruled against). If an appeal is tabled, it does not carry with it the 

subject matter being discussed at the time of the appeal. 

RULE 16. RESCIND 

Any vote taken may be rescinded, unless something has been done as a result of the vote that 

the Council cannot undo.  Legal counsel shall determine whether or not reconsideration 

creates a potential legal liability for the city and will advise accordingly. 

RULE 17. SUSPEND THE RULES 

Any rule may be temporarily suspended by an affirmative vote of at least five (5) members, 

unless a different number of votes are specifically stated in a rule.  Rule 20 shall not be 

suspended, nor shall any rule be suspended if it is a restatement of a requirement of state law, 

the City Charter or City Code. 

RULE 18. RECONSIDERATION. 

(a) A motion to reconsider a vote, including a vote resulting in a tie, or other action that has been 

taken by the Council may be made, provided no action has been taken in reliance upon such 

vote or action in accordance with the following: 



19 

 

(1) A Council Member on the prevailing side on a vote or action may move for 

reconsideration of such vote or action at the same meeting the vote or action was made or 

at the next regular Council meeting, but at no other subsequent meeting. 

(2) No vote or other action shall be reconsidered more than once. A motion to reconsider 

shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of Council Members serving. 

(3) If a motion to reconsider fails, it cannot be renewed. 

(4) This does not preclude the Council from again dealing with an issue, policy, decision or 

other action based upon significant new information unavailable to the Council when the 

decision or other action was initially taken. 

RULE 19. VOTING 

(a) The Chair determines when to close debate after determining if all Council Members have 

been given an opportunity to be heard and to call for a voice vote or a roll call vote of the 

question. Roll call votes shall be taken when required by law or by these rules of procedure. 

If a voice vote is taken, and the vote is less than unanimous, either the Chair or any Council 

Member may request a show of hands to verify the motion was approved. Any Council 

Member voting against a motion may request that the minutes reflect his or her “no” vote. 

(b) Council Members in attendance shall have a duty to vote for or against all measures before 

the City Council, unless there is a financial conflict of interest and they have been excused by 

the remaining council members. Conflicts shall be governed as follows: 

(1) Except for public contracts governed by the Contracts of Public Servants with Public 

Entities Act (Act 317 of 1968), no member of the City Council shall have an interest, 

directly or indirectly, in any contract, job or work with the City. No member of the City 

Council shall be financially interested directly or indirectly in the sale to the City of any 

land, materials, supplies or services. This does not apply to the official services of his or 

her office. 

(2) The foregoing prohibitions of paragraph (a) above, as they apply to a Council Member or 

Council Members, shall not apply if the City Council shall declare on its records by an 

affirmative vote of five (5) of the remaining members of the City Council that the best 

interests of the City are served despite a personal interest, direct or indirect, and if in 



20 

 

compliance with the Contracts of Public Servants with Public Entities Act (Act 317 of 

1968). 

(3) If a Council Member shall have a conflict or believes he/she may have a potential conflict 

of interest as shown in paragraph (a), the member shall immediately disclose the nature 

and extent of his or her interest prior to the consideration of the agenda item involved. If 

it is determined, in consultation with legal counsel and review of the Charter and state 

law that a conflict does not exist, or the City Council has declared on its record the best 

interests are served despite the personal interest, the member may participate in the 

deliberations and shall vote on such matter. 

(c) Roll call votes shall be called by the City Clerk in a rotating order and entered upon the 

record, except that when the vote is unanimous, it shall only be necessary to so state. The 

Chair shall always vote last. Once voting begins, no Council Member shall be entitled to 

speak on the question, nor shall any motion be in order, until the roll call is finished, and the 

results declared. 

(d) Procedural matters may be decided by a voice vote if declared by the Chair. Such procedural 

matters include motions to adjourn, receive and file, refer a matter, approve the minutes or to 

accept or decline an invitation. The Chair shall announce the result of the voting. Upon any 

such matter, a majority of the quorum present shall be sufficient to carry such a motion, 

unless the Charter or other rule herein specifically requires a greater majority. 

(e) All resolutions, ordinances, motions or declarations shall be adopted or passed by an 

affirmative vote of at least four (4) members, unless otherwise provided by law. 

(f) A Council Member may change their vote if he or she makes a request to do so immediately 

following the vote and prior to the time that the next item in the order of business is taken up. 

The vote shall be changed and the record shall reflect the Council Member’s changed vote. 

Such member shall not be permitted to make any other change of vote upon the same 

question, except upon a properly introduced motion to reconsider. 

RULE 20. AMEND/REPEAL RULES 

These rules may be amended or repealed by resolution of the City Council and shall not be 

finally passed at the same meeting at which it is introduced, and such resolution shall be 



21 

 

postponed for final consideration until the next regular meeting or until such further time as 

the City Council shall determine. This rule shall not be suspended. 

 



 
 

22 

 

APPENDIX A. BASIC PARLIAMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

 



 
 

23 

 

 

 

 



 
 

24 

 

 

 



 
 

25 

 

APPENDIX B. ADJOURNMENT SINE DIE PROCEDURE 

The City Council biennially adjourns the former City Council sine die, Latin for indefinitely, 

after each regular November general City election. The following is a recommended procedure 

for the transfer of power between City Councils. 

1. Call To Order (By current Mayor) 

2. Moment of Silence 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Mayor and Council Member Comments (This time is offered for outgoing Council Members to 

make final comments prior to the expiration of their term of office.) 

6. Adjournment Sine Die (Mayor requests a motion and support to adjourn “sine die.”  Once voted, the 

Council is adjourned “indefinitely”.) 

7. Reorganization of the City Council 

a. Outgoing Mayor or Council Members step down from their places. 

b. City Clerk offers oath of office to each new Council Member. 

c. City Clerk offers oath of office to new Mayor. 

d. New Mayor or Council Members take their places at the City Council dais. 

e. City Clerk presents the Albion City Council to the Mayor and requests a “Call to 

Order.” 

8. Call To Order (By new Mayor) 

9. Roll Call 

10. Nomination of the Mayor Pro Tempore 

a. A motion to receive nominations is made and supported. 

b. Nominations are received. No support for each nomination is required. 

c. A motion to close nominations is made and supported. 

11. Election of the Mayor Pro Tempore 

A motion to elect the first nominee is made. If there is support, discussion is requested. If 

none, a vote is made, generally a roll call vote. If approved by the vote the nominee is 

elected Mayor Pro Tempore. If the motion fails, a motion to elect the second nominee is 

made and supported, discussed if needed and voted. If approved, the nominee is elected 

Mayor Pro Tempore. (And so on.) 



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:27 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/1BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

90,000 85,530 0 0 0 0 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES243-000-402.00

TRANSFER IN FROM DDA - REPRESENTS AMOUNT CAPTURED BY DDA BUT OWED
TO BROWNFIELD PER AGREEMENT.

80,000 75,760 0 0 0 0 TRANSFER IN243-000-699.00

170,000 161,290 0 0 0 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

170,000 161,290 0 0 0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Dept 723 - BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
APPROPRIATIONS

OWED TO STRATEGIC LOAN FUND PER BROWNFIELD CONTRACT.

147,500 138,790 0 0 0 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES243-723-802.00

AMOUNT OWED TO STRATEGIC LOAN FUND ADMINISTRATOR PER DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT.

22,500 22,500 0 0 0 0 ADMINISTRATION FEES243-723-840.00

170,000 161,290 0 0 0 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(170,000)(161,290)0 0 0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 723 - BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

0 0 0 0 0 0 ENDING FUND BALANCE
0 0 0 0 0 0 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

170,000 161,290 0 0 0 0 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 243
170,000 161,290 0 0 0 0 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 243

0 0 0 0 0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 243



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:39 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/2BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 244 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 23,452 23,452 21,000 21,548 0 LOCAL GRANTS244-000-590.00
0 387 388 0 450 232 INTEREST244-000-665.00

84,500 80,000 77,917 77,400 83,850 77,400 RENTS244-000-667.00
0 0 60,000 20,000 60,000 768 OTHER REVENUES244-000-671.00

60,000 64,000 5,098 60,000 15,348 25,893 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS244-000-676.00

144,500 167,839 166,855 178,400 181,196 104,293   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

144,500 167,839 166,855 178,400 181,196 104,293 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL

Dept 728 - EDC
APPROPRIATIONS

93,555 55,725 48,252 89,938 62,491 53,648 SALARIES AND WAGES244-728-702.00
0 3,327 3,327 0 0 1,000 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES244-728-702.01
0 16,900 9,713 0 0 0 PART TIME WAGES244-728-703.00

1,368 1,120 898 1,326 915 827 MEDICARE244-728-714.00
5,850 4,800 3,841 5,669 3,912 3,536 FICA244-728-715.00
9,693 8,070 6,118 9,361 8,033 6,995 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE244-728-716.00

344 215 183 283 181 170 LIFE INSURANCE244-728-717.00
5,915 3,500 3,015 5,823 4,141 1,429 PENSION CONTRIBUTION244-728-719.00

832 425 340 473 214 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION244-728-720.00
39 20 12 133 10 7 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE244-728-721.00

1,286 975 858 1,549 1,000 884 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB244-728-723.00
2,700 1,500 1,250 1,500 1,500 2,940 CAR ALLOWANCE244-728-724.00
1,200 1,200 800 850 666 523 OFFICE SUPPLY244-728-726.00
3,000 2,500 2,054 2,500 0 0 OFFICE EQUIPMENT244-728-727.00
1,625 1,200 1,032 1,625 1,293 1,613 DUES, BOOKS, PERIODICAL244-728-728.00

100 100 44 100 35 71 POSTAGE244-728-744.00
4,000 6,500 5,631 10,000 6,658 11,740 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA244-728-785.00
7,500 7,500 3,803 7,500 4,223 13,819 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES244-728-801.00
6,500 5,500 4,122 13,000 13,513 31,120 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES244-728-802.00

0 0 0 0 85 0 CONFERENCE COSTS244-728-819.00
2,652 2,600 2,167 2,600 2,500 2,500 ADMINISTRATION FEES244-728-840.00
3,000 3,600 2,940 3,000 2,706 2,598 TELEPHONE244-728-851.00

500 250 19 500 124 67 TRAVEL244-728-857.00
6,000 1,500 833 750 0 0 TRAINING244-728-885.00
2,500 2,500 2,117 1,200 2,000 1,000 BUILDING RENTAL244-728-941.00
4,000 4,000 3,192 4,000 1,871 0 INSURANCE AND BONDS244-728-950.00
7,500 5,000 118 5,000 982 3,351 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT244-728-967.00
4,500 4,500 4,488 4,500 4,274 4,070 PRINCIPAL244-728-991.00

PMTS TO ABA.  LOAN PURPOSE WAS TO ASSUME
LAND CONTRACT.  MATAURES 1/10/2021

769 993 993 1,000 1,207 1,411 INTEREST244-728-995.00

176,928 146,020 112,160 174,180 124,534 145,319   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(176,928)(146,020)(112,160)(174,180)(124,534)(145,319)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 728 - EDC

Dept 930 - TRANSFER IN
ESTIMATED REVENUES

TRANSFER IN FROM TIFA:
       2016 - $43,135
       2019 - $33,000

33,000 0 0 0 0 43,135 TRANSFER IN244-930-699.00

33,000 0 0 0 0 43,135   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

33,000 0 0 0 0 43,135 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 930 - TRANSFER IN

176,928 146,020 112,160 174,180 124,534 145,319 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 244
177,500 167,839 166,855 178,400 181,196 147,428 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 244



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:39 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/2BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 244 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

96,084 95,512 128,388 77,913 73,693 17,030 ENDING FUND BALANCE
95,512 73,693 73,693 73,693 17,031 14,921 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

176,928 146,020 112,160 174,180 124,534 145,319 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 244
572 21,819 54,695 4,220 56,662 2,109 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 244



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:08 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 246 INCUBATOR FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

170 170 146 200 243 459 INTEREST246-000-665.00

170 170 146 200 243 459   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

170 170 146 200 243 459 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:08 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 246 INCUBATOR FUND

Dept 729 - BUSINESS INCUBATOR REVENUES
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 31,000 31,427 30,000 37,864 30,992 RENTS246-729-667.00
0 18,547 18,547 5,400 0 0 OTHER REVENUES246-729-671.00
0 11,300 11,301 8,000 15,189 8,598 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS246-729-676.00

0 60,847 61,275 43,400 53,053 39,590   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS
0 2,741 2,740 11,875 11,875 8,750 SALARIES AND WAGES246-729-702.00
0 649 648 0 0 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES246-729-702.01
0 5,155 3,523 0 0 0 PART TIME WAGES246-729-703.00
0 125 100 172 169 124 MEDICARE246-729-714.00
0 530 427 736 723 529 FICA246-729-715.00
0 661 660 1,910 1,937 1,884 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE246-729-716.00
0 14 14 56 55 55 LIFE INSURANCE246-729-717.00
0 192 192 831 831 613 PENSION CONTRIBUTION246-729-719.00
0 45 34 58 38 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION246-729-720.00
0 5 1 19 1 1 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE246-729-721.00
0 68 68 238 238 175 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB246-729-723.00
0 100 13 500 257 237 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES246-729-776.00
0 5,600 5,215 9,000 8,745 15,213 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA246-729-785.00
0 1,000 250 1,000 108 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES246-729-801.00
0 1,400 1,276 2,000 1,952 2,434 GAS246-729-921.00
0 17,000 15,179 8,800 14,802 8,237 ELECTRICITY246-729-922.00
0 300 189 450 343 389 WATER246-729-923.00
0 600 483 600 500 500 BUILDING RENTAL246-729-941.00
0 3,400 3,363 3,300 3,123 3,031 INSURANCE AND BONDS246-729-950.00

0 39,585 34,375 41,545 45,697 42,172   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 21,262 26,900 1,855 7,356 (2,582)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 729 - BUSINESS INCUBATOR EXPENSES



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:08 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 246 INCUBATOR FUND

Dept 730 - ROOF REPAIRS - 2011
APPROPRIATIONS

PMTS TO THE CEMETERY TRUST FUND.  LOAN PURPOSE WAS TO MAKE ROOF
REPAIRS.  (PRINCIPAL PORTION REFLECTED ON THE BALANCE SHEET).
INCUBATOR BUILDING WAS SOLD IN OCT, 2018 SO LOAN HAS NOW BEEN PAID
IN FULL.  ACCORDINY, NO INTEREST EXPENSE SHOWN FOR 2019.

0 1,814 1,814 2,000 1,195 1,793 INTEREST246-730-995.00

0 1,814 1,814 2,000 1,195 1,793   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (1,814)(1,814)(2,000)(1,195)(1,793)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 730 - ROOF REPAIRS - 2011



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:08 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 246 INCUBATOR FUND

Dept 731 - FOOD HUB
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 22,269 4,356 17,984 18,247 16,664 FEDERAL GRANTS246-731-502.00
0 700 700 0 0 0 STATE GRANTS246-731-540.00
0 6,250 6,250 4,250 11,646 57,131 LOCAL GRANTS246-731-590.00

1,500 1,000 926 1,600 1,971 1,140 FARMERS MARKET STALL FEES246-731-631.02
0 0 0 500 0 0 FARMERS MARKET SPONSORS246-731-631.03
0 250 191 2,000 1,878 1,139 SR PROJECT FRESH & MRKT FRESH246-731-631.04

12,000 15,000 9,698 5,000 4,429 1,636 RENTS246-731-667.00
55,300 239 239 53,000 399 500 OTHER REVENUES246-731-671.00

0 600 600 0 397 3,782 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS246-731-676.00

68,800 46,308 22,960 84,334 38,967 81,992   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS
36,800 20,850 15,259 0 12,738 30,731 SALARIES AND WAGES246-731-702.00
7,200 11,780 10,990 40,783 20,786 2,074 PART TIME WAGES246-731-703.00

638 475 381 508 483 464 MEDICARE246-731-714.00
2,278 2,025 1,627 2,173 2,066 1,984 FICA246-731-715.00

0 0 0 0 3,066 7,390 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE246-731-716.00
222 105 44 0 74 167 LIFE INSURANCE246-731-717.00

2,450 1,415 1,019 0 778 2,151 PENSION CONTRIBUTION246-731-719.00
541 275 192 172 107 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION246-731-720.00
50 20 10 150 14 6 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE246-731-721.00

736 420 306 0 255 615 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB246-731-723.00
300 300 281 600 511 492 OFFICE SUPPLY246-731-726.00
250 200 162 250 0 143 OFFICE EQUIPMENT246-731-727.00
250 0 0 250 0 198 DUES, BOOKS, PERIODICAL246-731-728.00
50 10 0 50 30 0 POSTAGE246-731-744.00

1,500 1,000 561 1,000 596 2,583 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES246-731-776.00
3,400 3,400 2,279 3,000 2,683 3,683 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA246-731-785.00

500 0 0 500 0 399 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES246-731-801.00
2,600 2,600 2,252 3,000 2,632 39,095 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES246-731-802.00

0 250 0 2,000 1,832 1,148 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES - FARMERS MRKT VEND246-731-802.03
500 845 40 1,000 180 420 CONFERENCE COSTS246-731-819.00

3,055 2,995 2,496 2,995 2,880 0 ADMINISTRATION FEES246-731-840.00
2,500 2,400 1,680 2,500 2,145 2,994 TELEPHONE246-731-851.00

350 0 0 350 0 187 TRAVEL246-731-857.00
2,000 2,000 1,326 3,600 1,574 1,128 GAS246-731-921.00
6,000 5,400 3,484 6,000 3,784 3,334 ELECTRICITY246-731-922.00
1,300 1,150 803 1,300 1,039 1,039 WATER246-731-923.00

1 1 1 1 1 1 BUILDING RENTAL246-731-941.00
4,050 4,050 3,192 4,000 3,523 1,625 INSURANCE AND BONDS246-731-950.00

500 15,050 15,006 8,000 2,304 450 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT246-731-967.00

80,021 79,016 63,391 84,182 66,081 104,501   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(11,221)(32,708)(40,431)152 (27,114)(22,509)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 731 - FOOD HUB



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:08 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 246 INCUBATOR FUND

Dept 930 - TRANSFER IN
ESTIMATED REVENUES

TRANSFER IN FROM TIFA:
       2016 - $15,665
       2017 - $35,000
          ($19,000 OF WHICH MAY BE IN THE FORM OF A LOAN).
       2018 - $13,100
       2019 - $12,000

12,000 13,100 13,100 0 35,000 15,665 TRANSFER IN246-930-699.00

12,000 13,100 13,100 0 35,000 15,665   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

12,000 13,100 13,100 0 35,000 15,665 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 930 - TRANSFER IN

31,409 30,460 28,351 30,657 30,453 16,161 ENDING FUND BALANCE
30,460 30,450 30,450 30,450 16,163 26,921 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

80,021 120,415 99,580 127,727 112,973 148,466 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 246
80,970 120,425 97,481 127,934 127,263 137,706 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 246

949 10 (2,099)207 14,290 (10,760)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 246



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/2BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 247 TIFA FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

125,000 100,000 88,081 97,299 116,373 184,244 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES247-000-402.00
0 0 0 0 41,503 0 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX247-000-441.00

75,000 115,390 115,397 41,503 0 80,029 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION STATE REIM247-000-573.00
400 575 577 200 1,008 814 INTEREST247-000-665.00

0 55,547 57,047 0 0 0 OTHER REVENUES247-000-671.00
0 0 0 0 0 349 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS247-000-676.00

200,400 271,512 261,102 139,002 158,884 265,436   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

200,400 271,512 261,102 139,002 158,884 265,436 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL

Dept 730 - TIFA
APPROPRIATIONS

61,503 76,800 62,518 91,248 105,519 91,701 SALARIES AND WAGES247-730-702.00
0 980 979 192 0 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES247-730-702.01

32,500 19,450 12,219 0 0 0 PART TIME WAGES247-730-703.00
1,561 1,475 1,138 1,393 1,580 1,376 MEDICARE247-730-714.00
6,673 6,300 4,834 5,956 6,757 5,886 FICA247-730-715.00
8,966 14,420 11,275 15,744 18,245 12,414 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE247-730-716.00

115 190 155 238 315 247 LIFE INSURANCE247-730-717.00
50 50 15 49 388 389 DISABLIITY INSURANCE247-730-718.00

3,982 5,350 4,337 6,385 7,315 2,543 PENSION CONTRIBUTION247-730-719.00
641 525 406 470 354 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION247-730-720.00
63 20 7 80 7 10 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE247-730-721.00

520 875 782 1,055 1,194 1,347 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB247-730-723.00
4,500 4,535 3,780 4,620 5,446 4,375 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE247-730-724.00

0 0 0 0 0 2,014 OFFICE EQUIPMENT247-730-727.00
5,000 7,000 5,488 7,000 6,308 6,634 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA247-730-785.00
5,000 6,000 4,931 2,500 1,013 473 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES247-730-801.00

500 850 957 400 333 327 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES247-730-802.00
6,361 6,236 5,197 6,236 5,996 5,996 ADMINISTRATION FEES247-730-840.00

0 0 0 0 0 623 TELEPHONE247-730-851.00
360 200 82 360 308 308 ELECTRICITY247-730-922.00

10,200 11,500 9,213 10,200 9,380 9,380 BUILDING RENTAL247-730-941.00
5,000 0 0 0 0 0 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT247-730-967.00

REVITALIZATION LOAN FROM DEQ - 971 AUSTIN AVE. - MATURED IN 2017.

0 0 0 0 2,974 2,908 PRINCIPAL247-730-991.00

0 0 0 0 67 132 INTEREST247-730-995.00

2016:
       TRANSFER TO EDC - $43,135
       TRANSFER TO INCUBATOR - $15,665
2017:
       TRANSFER TO INCUBATOR FUND - $35,000
       ($19,000 OF WHICH MAY BE IN THE FORM OF A LOAN)
2018:
       TRANSFER TO INCUBATOR FUND - $13,100
2019:
       TRANSFER TO EDC - $33,000
       TRANSFER TO INCUBATOR - $12,000

45,000 13,100 13,100 0 35,000 58,800 TRANSFER OUT247-730-999.00

198,495 175,856 141,413 154,126 208,499 207,883   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(198,495)(175,856)(141,413)(154,126)(208,499)(207,883)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 730 - TIFA

255,862 160,206 160,206 160,206 209,818 152,265 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

198,495 175,856 141,413 154,126 208,499 207,883 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 247
200,400 271,512 261,102 139,002 158,884 265,436 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 247

1,905 95,656 119,689 (15,124)(49,615)57,553 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 247



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/2BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 247 TIFA FUND

257,767 255,862 279,895 145,082 160,203 209,818 ENDING FUND BALANCE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:55 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/1BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 296 REVOLVING LOAN FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

7,200 5,600 6,153 4,095 8,824 12,127 INTEREST296-000-665.00

7,200 5,600 6,153 4,095 8,824 12,127   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

7,200 5,600 6,153 4,095 8,824 12,127 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL

Dept 740 - REVOLVING LOAN
APPROPRIATIONS

5,500 3,785 2,774 1,188 4,750 3,530 SALARIES AND WAGES296-740-702.00
0 65 65 0 0 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES296-740-702.01

80 56 40 17 68 50 MEDICARE296-740-714.00
341 238 173 74 289 214 FICA296-740-715.00
881 835 490 191 775 758 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE296-740-716.00
11 9 6 6 22 22 LIFE INSURANCE296-740-717.00

385 275 194 83 333 246 PENSION CONTRIBUTION296-740-719.00
33 25 14 6 15 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION296-740-720.00
1 2 0 2 1 1 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE296-740-721.00

50 25 19 24 95 71 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB296-740-723.00
35 35 35 35 35 35 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES296-740-802.00

1,500 0 0 0 0 0 TRAINING296-740-885.00

8,817 5,350 3,810 1,626 6,383 4,927   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(8,817)(5,350)(3,810)(1,626)(6,383)(4,927)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 740 - REVOLVING LOAN

687,269 688,886 690,979 691,105 688,635 686,194 ENDING FUND BALANCE
688,886 688,636 688,636 688,636 686,194 678,994 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

8,817 5,350 3,810 1,626 6,383 4,927 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 296
7,200 5,600 6,153 4,095 8,824 12,127 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 296

(1,617)250 2,343 2,469 2,441 7,200 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 296



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:13 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/1BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 277 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

230,000 225,000 175,062 220,000 240,088 228,634 FEDERAL GRANTS277-000-502.00
1,150 1,050 935 1,000 1,331 1,181 INTEREST277-000-665.00

217,500 217,500 171,545 215,000 210,536 215,183 RENTS277-000-667.00
6,250 6,250 4,596 6,000 6,762 5,898 OTHER REVENUES277-000-671.00

500 600 556 1,000 816 4,552 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS277-000-676.00

455,400 450,400 352,694 443,000 459,533 455,448   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

455,400 450,400 352,694 443,000 459,533 455,448 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL

Dept 701 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
APPROPRIATIONS

5,500 5,500 3,555 3,500 3,785 3,265 OFFICE SUPPLY277-701-726.00
6,500 6,500 4,245 2,500 61 982 OFFICE EQUIPMENT277-701-727.00

0 0 0 500 0 0 DUES, BOOKS, PERIODICAL277-701-728.00
150 150 88 100 147 166 POSTAGE277-701-744.00

12,500 12,500 4,610 12,500 6,086 10,659 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES277-701-776.00
100 100 10 100 0 40 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES277-701-780.00

50,000 55,000 43,629 41,000 41,721 41,067 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA277-701-785.00
500 500 171 500 10,371 2,534 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES277-701-801.00

165,000 165,000 112,657 165,000 164,665 111,123 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES277-701-802.00
0 0 0 600 0 0 CONFERENCE COSTS277-701-819.00

60,653 59,950 35,910 59,950 52,526 48,995 ADMINISTRATION FEES277-701-840.00
3,750 3,750 2,711 2,500 2,430 2,072 TELEPHONE277-701-851.00
2,500 2,500 1,158 1,500 1,951 2,747 TRAINING277-701-885.00
2,500 2,500 1,032 2,500 3,323 3,132 PUBLISHING277-701-900.00

18,500 18,000 10,134 18,000 12,688 11,235 GAS277-701-921.00
19,500 18,500 14,404 18,500 15,872 15,227 ELECTRICITY277-701-922.00
10,000 10,000 6,436 10,000 8,145 8,744 WATER277-701-923.00
6,500 6,000 4,801 6,000 5,374 5,235 INSURANCE AND BONDS277-701-950.00

500 500 234 500 280 916 MISCELLANEOUS277-701-955.00

2017 - $25,000 FOR NEW CLOSET DOORS FOR UNITS, BATH, & DINING ROOM;
       $10,000 NEW DOORS; $5,000 MISC UPGRADES

0 0 0 0 0 76,069 BUILDINGS, ADDITIONS & IMPROVE277-701-976.00

1,500 1,500 0 1,500 0 57 EQUIPMENT277-701-977.00

366,153 368,450 245,785 347,250 329,425 344,265   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(366,153)(368,450)(245,785)(347,250)(329,425)(344,265)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 701 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

Dept 905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS
APPROPRIATIONS

TO DEBT SERVICE FUND 369 - ALBION BLDG AUTHORITY BONDS TO COVER DEBT SERVICE FOR THE FIRE/REMODELING BOND ISSUE.  BONDS MATURE 4/1/2019.

61,750 64,750 64,750 64,750 62,488 64,963 TRANSFER OUT277-905-999.00

61,750 64,750 64,750 64,750 62,488 64,963   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(61,750)(64,750)(64,750)(64,750)(62,488)(64,963)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS

611,451 583,954 608,913 597,754 566,752 499,131 ENDING FUND BALANCE
583,954 566,754 566,754 566,754 499,132 452,911 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

427,903 433,200 310,535 412,000 391,913 409,228 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 277
455,400 450,400 352,694 443,000 459,533 455,448 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 277

27,497 17,200 42,159 31,000 67,620 46,220 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 277



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

15,170 15,170 10,115 15,170 15,169 15,174 STATE GRANTS202-000-540.00
28,262 28,262 28,262 0 0 24,544 STATE GRANTS - OTHERS202-000-569.00
32,200 32,110 32,110 32,000 31,868 32,644 METRO RIGHT-OF-WAYS - PUB ACT202-000-576.00

695,000 669,000 462,639 649,000 623,588 474,864 STATE SHARED: GAS & WEIGHT TAX202-000-579.00
3,750 3,500 2,934 2,500 2,914 2,069 INTEREST202-000-665.00

0 0 0 0 0 51 OTHER REVENUES202-000-671.00
1,500 1,083 1,083 1,500 1,144 1,819 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS202-000-676.00

2018 - REIMBURSE MAJOR STREET FOR BIKE RACKS.

0 1,202 1,202 0 0 0 TRANSFER IN202-000-699.00

775,882 750,327 538,345 700,170 674,683 551,165   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

775,882 750,327 538,345 700,170 674,683 551,165 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 454 - ACT 51 NON-MOTORIZED
APPROPRIATIONS

2016 - PAID FOR SIDEWALK RAMPS AND APPROACH AT FITCH ST.
2017 - PAID FOR SIDEWALK RAMPS AND APPROACH AT CASS, FORD RD &
       TERPENNING.
2018 - DID NOT USE MONEY FROM MAJOR STREETS FOR ANY SIDEWALK REPAIRS
       AS INTENDED.
2019 - ANTICIPATED NON-MOTORIZED CONTRIBUTION TO RIVER TRAIL EXPANSION
       PROJECT TO TAKE PLACE IN 2019.

95,000 0 0 17,500 0 6,467 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES202-454-802.00

95,000 0 0 17,500 0 6,467   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(95,000)0 0 (17,500)0 (6,467)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 454 - ACT 51 NON-MOTORIZED



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 461 - MAINTENANCE
APPROPRIATIONS

121,715 134,500 95,645 143,201 132,312 105,427 SALARIES AND WAGES202-461-702.00
10,500 32,500 21,421 3,000 53 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES202-461-702.01

0 1,000 411 0 0 0 WORKERS COMP SICK LEAVE202-461-702.02
4,370 500 0 0 2,855 2,585 PART TIME WAGES202-461-703.00
3,665 3,950 2,431 3,425 2,074 1,838 OVERTIME202-461-704.00

300 300 0 300 150 150 LICENSING INCENTIVE202-461-706.00
1,575 2,975 2,475 2,975 2,340 2,260 ON CALL PAY202-461-707.00
2,000 2,520 1,732 2,300 1,970 1,586 MEDICARE202-461-714.00
8,555 10,875 7,194 9,833 8,421 6,778 FICA202-461-715.00

54,630 56,000 40,871 64,300 54,633 40,002 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE202-461-716.00
380 400 294 440 388 332 LIFE INSURANCE202-461-717.00

0 315 64 315 259 259 DISABLIITY INSURANCE202-461-718.00
8,070 4,500 2,619 4,500 2,768 2,340 PENSION CONTRIBUTION202-461-719.00
6,155 10,800 7,988 7,800 8,375 2,727 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION202-461-719.01
9,185 11,500 7,055 9,639 5,870 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-461-720.00

75 75 15 245 19 16 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE202-461-721.00
2,470 3,585 2,121 2,675 2,338 1,894 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB202-461-723.00

0 188 188 755 632 211 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE202-461-724.00
3,000 2,750 2,215 2,400 2,314 2,397 UNIFORMS202-461-741.00

500 500 356 500 0 80 SAFETY MATERIALS (OSHA)202-461-750.00
45,000 43,500 34,938 42,000 54,117 30,163 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES202-461-776.00
10,000 9,250 7,329 9,000 8,943 8,204 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES202-461-802.00
61,043 19,983 16,653 19,983 19,983 19,983 ADMINISTRATION FEES202-461-840.00

500 100 80 100 10 0 TRAINING202-461-885.00
8,500 7,750 5,681 4,000 1,569 2,684 ELECTRICITY202-461-922.00

14,000 14,000 11,667 14,000 14,000 14,000 BUILDING RENTAL202-461-941.00
32,500 32,500 20,420 35,000 26,650 26,984 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-461-943.00
11,500 10,950 8,738 10,950 10,289 10,165 INSURANCE AND BONDS202-461-950.00

420,188 417,766 300,601 393,636 363,332 283,065   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(420,188)(417,766)(300,601)(393,636)(363,332)(283,065)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 461 - MAINTENANCE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES
APPROPRIATIONS

1,300 1,300 235 1,300 845 195 SALARIES AND WAGES202-465-702.00
0 0 0 0 59 0 PART TIME WAGES202-465-703.00

135 135 46 135 63 56 OVERTIME202-465-704.00
22 22 4 22 13 3 MEDICARE202-465-714.00
91 91 17 91 58 15 FICA202-465-715.00

700 700 46 700 330 112 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE202-465-716.00
10 10 0 10 2 0 LIFE INSURANCE202-465-717.00
65 65 11 65 22 2 PENSION CONTRIBUTION202-465-719.00
0 100 14 100 60 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION202-465-719.01

115 115 22 115 50 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-465-720.00
10 10 0 10 0 0 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE202-465-721.00
35 35 6 35 18 5 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB202-465-723.00
0 0 0 2,000 1,194 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES202-465-776.00

600 600 235 600 450 142 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-465-943.00

3,083 3,183 636 5,183 3,164 530   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(3,083)(3,183)(636)(5,183)(3,164)(530)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
APPROPRIATIONS

6,900 7,400 3,438 4,750 4,354 3,242 SALARIES AND WAGES202-467-702.00
4,750 4,750 1,603 4,750 739 1,259 OVERTIME202-467-704.00

170 175 69 160 70 62 MEDICARE202-467-714.00
725 750 294 600 298 265 FICA202-467-715.00

4,000 6,500 2,786 4,500 2,615 2,062 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE202-467-716.00
25 40 17 30 20 15 LIFE INSURANCE202-467-717.00

525 550 228 500 192 157 PENSION CONTRIBUTION202-467-719.00
0 600 195 300 239 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION202-467-719.01

675 825 360 250 249 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-467-720.00
10 30 2 75 2 2 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE202-467-721.00

235 245 101 200 102 90 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB202-467-723.00
0 1,500 0 1,500 0 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES202-467-776.00

32,500 30,000 17,749 11,500 14,059 13,229 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-467-943.00

50,515 53,365 26,842 29,115 22,939 20,383   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(50,515)(53,365)(26,842)(29,115)(22,939)(20,383)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 6/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 486 - I-94 TRUNKLINE
APPROPRIATIONS

2,675 3,850 1,875 1,485 1,131 1,087 SALARIES AND WAGES202-486-702.00
0 0 0 0 47 0 PART TIME WAGES202-486-703.00

2,350 2,350 899 2,350 550 2,206 OVERTIME202-486-704.00
75 85 38 56 24 46 MEDICARE202-486-714.00

315 380 163 235 102 195 FICA202-486-715.00
1,380 2,950 1,353 800 708 1,299 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE202-486-716.00

10 30 12 10 6 10 LIFE INSURANCE202-486-717.00
175 175 78 130 57 104 PENSION CONTRIBUTION202-486-719.00

0 375 181 150 90 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION202-486-719.01
270 430 206 120 83 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-486-720.00
10 10 1 10 1 1 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE202-486-721.00

100 125 56 40 34 66 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB202-486-723.00
10,500 10,500 6,877 8,500 11,004 6,217 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES202-486-776.00

0 1,817 1,514 1,817 1,817 1,817 ADMINISTRATION FEES202-486-840.00
15,500 17,500 11,379 7,000 5,317 9,098 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-486-943.00

33,360 40,577 24,632 22,703 20,971 22,146   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(33,360)(40,577)(24,632)(22,703)(20,971)(22,146)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 486 - I-94 TRUNKLINE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 7/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 133,234 133,234 40,000 64,254 57,318 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE202-487-577.00

0 133,234 133,234 40,000 64,254 57,318   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS
3,000 3,500 1,447 2,700 1,535 1,400 SALARIES AND WAGES202-487-702.00
2,000 1,880 817 1,750 446 1,500 OVERTIME202-487-704.00

75 75 31 65 27 40 MEDICARE202-487-714.00
315 315 133 275 117 171 FICA202-487-715.00

2,500 2,610 1,092 1,500 889 1,249 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE202-487-716.00
15 15 8 10 6 10 LIFE INSURANCE202-487-717.00

175 155 66 120 68 74 PENSION CONTRIBUTION202-487-719.00
0 340 144 155 114 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION202-487-719.01

350 360 165 225 95 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-487-720.00
10 10 1 10 1 1 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE202-487-721.00

100 110 45 65 40 58 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB202-487-723.00
6,500 6,900 4,501 5,500 7,525 4,226 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES202-487-776.00

0 1,817 1,514 1,817 1,817 1,817 ADMINISTRATION FEES202-487-840.00
15,500 15,500 9,255 8,500 5,884 8,743 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-487-943.00

30,540 33,587 19,219 22,692 18,564 19,289   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(30,540)99,647 114,015 17,308 45,690 38,029 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 8/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 488 - M-199 TRUNKLINE
APPROPRIATIONS

1,500 1,620 844 1,250 794 436 SALARIES AND WAGES202-488-702.00
0 0 0 0 71 0 PART TIME WAGES202-488-703.00

1,250 1,250 394 1,250 276 1,128 OVERTIME202-488-704.00
40 40 17 38 16 22 MEDICARE202-488-714.00

170 180 72 155 67 92 FICA202-488-715.00
1,000 1,325 622 775 485 661 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE202-488-716.00

10 10 5 10 4 5 LIFE INSURANCE202-488-717.00
100 85 40 55 38 48 PENSION CONTRIBUTION202-488-719.00

0 165 73 90 54 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION202-488-719.01
170 190 92 105 55 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION202-488-720.00
10 15 1 15 0 0 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE202-488-721.00
55 60 25 60 21 31 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB202-488-723.00

4,500 5,000 2,437 3,500 4,546 1,071 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES202-488-776.00
0 1,817 1,514 1,817 1,817 1,817 ADMINISTRATION FEES202-488-840.00

6,500 7,500 5,124 5,000 3,205 4,663 EQUIPMENT RENTAL202-488-943.00

15,305 19,257 11,260 14,120 11,449 9,974   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(15,305)(19,257)(11,260)(14,120)(11,449)(9,974)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 488 - M-199 TRUNKLINE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:26 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 9/9BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

TRANSFER TO DPW BLDG DEBT SERVICE FUND: $3,000 PER YEAR

TRANSFER TO LOCAL STREETS:
     2015 = $125,000
     2016 = $136,366
     2017 = $200,000
     2018 = $190,000
     2019 = $ 90,000

93,000 193,000 193,000 193,000 203,000 139,366 TRANSFER OUT202-965-999.00

93,000 193,000 193,000 193,000 203,000 139,366   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(93,000)(193,000)(193,000)(193,000)(203,000)(139,366)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

713,380 678,489 651,052 597,884 555,661 460,141 ENDING FUND BALANCE
678,489 555,663 555,663 555,663 460,143 352,878 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

740,991 760,735 576,190 697,949 643,419 501,220 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 202
775,882 883,561 671,579 740,170 738,937 608,483 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 202

34,891 122,826 95,389 42,221 95,518 107,263 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 202



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:32 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

5,250 5,250 3,500 5,250 5,250 5,250 STATE GRANTS203-000-540.00
28,262 94,206 94,206 0 0 24,544 STATE GRANTS - OTHERS203-000-569.00

240,000 225,000 160,070 224,887 215,819 164,303 STATE SHARED: GAS & WEIGHT TAX203-000-579.00
500 300 300 0 2,517 1,050 CHARGES FOR SERVICES RENDERED203-000-626.00

1,150 950 763 850 779 916 INTEREST203-000-665.00
0 30 30 0 30 0 OTHER REVENUES203-000-671.00

1,100 1,083 1,083 1,275 3,801 1,856 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS203-000-676.00

276,262 326,819 259,952 232,262 228,196 197,919   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

276,262 326,819 259,952 232,262 228,196 197,919 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:32 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND

Dept 461 - MAINTENANCE
APPROPRIATIONS

114,565 134,281 96,021 134,281 118,420 86,885 SALARIES AND WAGES203-461-702.00
0 13,125 9,122 0 53 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES203-461-702.01

4,370 1,200 0 0 5,805 7,321 PART TIME WAGES203-461-703.00
5,500 6,200 4,306 5,500 3,143 4,549 OVERTIME203-461-704.00
1,885 2,205 1,530 2,110 1,777 1,378 MEDICARE203-461-714.00
8,055 9,440 6,331 9,018 7,601 5,892 FICA203-461-715.00

51,026 53,500 38,508 57,800 52,059 35,355 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE203-461-716.00
360 375 284 405 394 253 LIFE INSURANCE203-461-717.00

0 315 64 315 259 259 DISABLIITY INSURANCE203-461-718.00
7,615 4,515 2,975 4,010 2,965 2,402 PENSION CONTRIBUTION203-461-719.00

0 6,400 4,517 7,080 6,267 2,727 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION203-461-719.01
8,445 8,370 5,979 8,624 5,141 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-461-720.00

75 75 12 225 21 16 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE203-461-721.00
2,310 2,710 1,843 2,400 2,011 1,506 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB203-461-723.00

0 188 188 755 632 211 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE203-461-724.00
33,500 34,000 21,956 34,000 35,186 21,513 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES203-461-776.00
4,000 5,000 2,849 5,000 3,686 737 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES203-461-802.00

22,076 14,533 12,111 14,533 13,933 14,533 ADMINISTRATION FEES203-461-840.00
14,000 14,000 11,667 14,000 14,000 14,000 BUILDING RENTAL203-461-941.00
52,500 55,000 32,036 55,000 50,750 51,739 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-461-943.00
11,500 10,500 8,378 10,500 10,103 10,026 INSURANCE AND BONDS203-461-950.00

300 400 0 400 0 0 MISCELLANEOUS203-461-955.00

342,082 376,332 260,677 365,956 334,206 261,302   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(342,082)(376,332)(260,677)(365,956)(334,206)(261,302)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 461 - MAINTENANCE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:32 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND

Dept 465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES
APPROPRIATIONS

2,620 2,620 644 2,620 1,964 956 SALARIES AND WAGES203-465-702.00
0 0 0 0 82 54 PART TIME WAGES203-465-703.00

60 60 0 60 14 0 OVERTIME203-465-704.00
40 40 9 40 28 14 MEDICARE203-465-714.00

175 175 38 175 122 60 FICA203-465-715.00
1,400 1,400 278 1,400 998 371 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE203-465-716.00

10 10 2 10 4 3 LIFE INSURANCE203-465-717.00
110 110 25 110 63 21 PENSION CONTRIBUTION203-465-719.00

0 162 32 162 102 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION203-465-719.01
225 225 48 225 106 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-465-720.00
10 10 0 10 1 0 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE203-465-721.00
65 65 13 65 39 19 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB203-465-723.00

1,000 1,000 0 1,500 1,214 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES203-465-776.00
1,250 1,250 251 1,000 1,345 592 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-465-943.00

6,965 7,127 1,340 7,377 6,082 2,090   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(6,965)(7,127)(1,340)(7,377)(6,082)(2,090)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:32 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND

Dept 467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE
APPROPRIATIONS

6,500 11,000 4,636 6,000 3,875 3,203 SALARIES AND WAGES203-467-702.00
0 0 0 0 0 188 PART TIME WAGES203-467-703.00

3,250 3,250 844 3,250 886 898 OVERTIME203-467-704.00
145 205 75 130 65 59 MEDICARE203-467-714.00
605 880 320 560 279 254 FICA203-467-715.00

3,660 6,670 2,890 3,500 2,342 1,788 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE203-467-716.00
25 40 20 25 17 10 LIFE INSURANCE203-467-717.00

475 440 213 350 165 142 PENSION CONTRIBUTION203-467-719.00
0 730 265 300 265 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION203-467-719.01

730 955 422 505 240 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION203-467-720.00
10 15 2 15 2 2 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE203-467-721.00

200 265 110 180 95 82 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB203-467-723.00
1,000 1,000 60 1,000 0 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES203-467-776.00

25,000 32,500 20,582 14,500 12,766 8,418 EQUIPMENT RENTAL203-467-943.00

41,600 57,950 30,439 30,315 20,997 15,044   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(41,600)(57,950)(30,439)(30,315)(20,997)(15,044)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:32 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND

Dept 930 - TRANSFER IN
ESTIMATED REVENUES

TRANSFER IN FROM MAJOR STREETS FUND:
     2014 = $115,000
     2015 = $125,000
     2016 = $136,366
     2017 = $200,000
     2018 = $190,000
     2019 = $ 90,000

90,000 190,000 190,000 190,000 200,000 136,366 TRANSFER IN203-930-699.00

90,000 190,000 190,000 190,000 200,000 136,366   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

90,000 190,000 190,000 190,000 200,000 136,366 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 930 - TRANSFER IN



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:32 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 6/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

TRANSFER TO DPW DEBT SERVICE FUND = $3,000 PER YEAR

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 TRANSFER OUT203-965-999.00

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(3,000)(3,000)(3,000)(3,000)(3,000)(3,000)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

251,273 278,658 360,744 221,862 206,248 142,335 ENDING FUND BALANCE
278,658 206,248 206,248 206,248 142,337 89,486 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

393,647 444,409 295,456 406,648 364,285 281,436 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 203
366,262 516,819 449,952 422,262 428,196 334,285 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 203

(27,385)72,410 154,496 15,614 63,911 52,849 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 203



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:41 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

230,000 227,000 218,737 223,500 234,558 234,529 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES450-000-402.00
(2,750)(2,500)(1,522)(5,000)(1,389)(5,564)PROPERTY TAX CHARGEBACKS450-000-402.01

500 703 703 500 808 995 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY T450-000-410.00
5,000 5,419 5,419 5,000 7,363 2,466 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES450-000-424.00

0 0 0 0 29,578 0 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX450-000-441.00
1,750 1,750 1,254 2,000 1,873 2,486 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES450-000-445.00

18,000 18,498 18,498 15,000 0 23,534 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION STATE REIM450-000-573.00
3,000 3,250 3,016 2,300 2,487 0 INTEREST450-000-665.00

0 0 0 0 0 15,075 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS450-000-676.00

255,500 254,120 246,105 243,300 275,278 273,521   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

255,500 254,120 246,105 243,300 275,278 273,521 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:41 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Dept 500 - STREET IMPROVEMENTS MISC EXP
APPROPRIATIONS

2019 - BUDGETED MISC ENGINEERING IN CASE COSTS ARE INCURRED GETTING
       READY FOR FUTURE STREET REPAIR PROJECTS.

15,000 0 0 43,300 2,015 850 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES450-500-801.00

2018 - PROPOSED ST REPAIR BUDGETED IN 2017 WHEN THE 2018 BUDGET WAS
       BEING PREPARED.  ENDED UP NOT DOING ANY STREET REPAIR DURING
       2018 AS FUNDS WERE SAVED FOR THE 2019 IRWIN AND NORTH STREET
       PROJECTS.

0 20,000 1,139 200,000 0 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES450-500-802.00

15,000 20,000 1,139 243,300 2,015 850   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(15,000)(20,000)(1,139)(243,300)(2,015)(850)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 500 - STREET IMPROVEMENTS MISC EXP



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:41 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Dept 501 - FITCH, SHERIDAN CT - LOCAL ST REPAIR
APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 0 20,728 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES450-501-801.00
0 0 0 0 0 156,583 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES450-501-802.00

0 0 0 0 0 177,311   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 0 (177,311)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 501 - FITCH, SHERIDAN CT - LOCAL ST REPAIR



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:41 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Dept 502 - ALBION COLLEGE LOCAL ST PROJECTS
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 0 0 25,000 27,500 0 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS450-502-676.00

0 0 0 25,000 27,500 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

REPRESENTS ANY

0 0 0 25,000 27,500 4,245 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES450-502-801.00

0 0 0 25,000 27,500 4,245   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 0 (4,245)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 502 - ALBION COLLEGE LOCAL ST PROJECTS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:41 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Dept 504 - FORD RD & TERPENNING - 2017 IMPROVEMENT
APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 25,020 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES450-504-801.00

2017 - FORD RD, TERPENNING & CASS FROM SUPERIOR ST TO BRIDGE.

0 0 0 0 329,372 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES450-504-802.00

0 0 0 0 354,392 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 (354,392)0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 504 - FORD RD & TERPENNING - 2017 IMPROVEMENT



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:41 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 6/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

2017 - TRANSFER TO MDOT ST IMPROVEMENT = $30,500 FOR SUPERIOR ST.
2019 - TRANSFER TO MDOT ST IMPROVEMENT FUND - $565,000 FOR CITY'S
       MATCH FOR NORTH STREET AND $122,650 FOR CITY'S MATCH FOR IRWIN
       AVE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECTS.

687,650 0 0 0 30,500 0 TRANSFER OUT450-965-999.00

687,650 0 0 0 30,500 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(687,650)0 0 0 (30,500)0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

66,507 513,657 524,503 279,537 279,537 391,164 ENDING FUND BALANCE
513,657 279,537 279,537 279,537 391,166 300,049 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

702,650 20,000 1,139 268,300 414,407 182,406 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 450
255,500 254,120 246,105 268,300 302,778 273,521 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 450

(447,150)234,120 244,966 0 (111,629)91,115 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 450



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:50 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/4BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND

Dept 505 - NORTH ST RESURFACING
ESTIMATED REVENUES

REPRESENTS THE STP FEDERAL GRANT REVENUE AWARDED FOR THE
RECONSTRUCTION OF NORTH STREET.  THE GRANT WILL ADMINISTERED
BY MDOT DESPITE IT BEING FEDERAL GRANT DOLLARS.

375,000 0 0 0 0 0 FEDERAL GRANTS452-505-502.00

REPRESENTS THE CITY'S REQUIRED MATCH FOR THE NORTH STREET
RECONSTRUCTION.  $120,000 WILL COME FROM THE WATER FUND ($20,000
FOR ENGINEERING AND $100,000 FOR REPLACEMENT OF WATER MAINS AT
3 LOCATIONS) AND THE BALANCE OF $565,000 WILL COME FROM THE STREET
IMPROVEMENT FUND 450.

685,000 0 0 0 0 0 TRANSFER IN452-505-699.00

1,060,000 0 0 0 0 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

2019 - REPRESENTS ENGINEERING COSTS FOR NORTH STREET RECONSTRUCTION.
OF THIS, APPROX. $20,000 IS ESTIMATED TO BE RELATED TO THE WATER MAIN
REPLACEMENT.  THE BALANCE OF $130,400 IS RELATED TO THE STREET
RECONSTRUCTION.

150,400 85,000 35,176 0 0 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES452-505-801.00

REPRESENTS THE PROJECTED COST OF THE NORTH STREET RECONSTRUCTION
PROJECT (LESS ENGINEERING COSTS).

909,600 0 0 0 0 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES452-505-802.00

1,060,000 85,000 35,176 0 0 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (85,000)(35,176)0 0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 505 - NORTH ST RESURFACING



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:50 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/4BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND

Dept 514 - IRWIN AVE - 2019 RECONSTRUCTION
ESTIMATED REVENUES

FEDERAL HUD GRANT TO COVER IRWIN AVE STREET RECONSTRUCTION,
INCLUDING REPLACEMENT OF THE WATER LINES BENEATH THE STREET.

2,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 FEDERAL GRANTS452-514-502.00

THE $223,000 REPRESENTS THE CITY'S MATCH FOR THE IRWIN AVE STREET
RECONSTRUCTION.  AN ESTIMATED 45% ($100,350) TO COME FROM THE WATER
FUND, AND 55% ($122,650) TO COME FROM STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 450.

223,000 0 0 0 0 0 TRANSFER IN452-514-699.00

2,223,000 0 0 0 0 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

REPRESENTS ENGINEERING COSTS FOR IRWIN ST RECONSTRUCTION.

223,000 0 0 0 0 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES452-514-801.00

REPRESENTS ESTIMATED CONTRACTUAL COST FOR IRWIN STREET
RECONSTRUCTION AND WATER LINE REPLACEMENT.

2,000,000 0 0 0 0 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES452-514-802.00

2,223,000 0 0 0 0 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 514 - IRWIN AVE - 2019 RECONSTRUCTION



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:50 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/4BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND

Dept 516 - SUPERIOR STREET CONSTRUCTION
APPROPRIATIONS

2018 - SINCE THE PROJECT WAS NOT COMPLETED IN 2017 AS SCHEDULED, THE
       CITY WAS BILLED FOR A PORTION OF IT'S REQUIRED MATCH IN 2018 (FOR
       NORTH END OF SUPERIOR ST THAT WAS NOT COMPLETED IN 2017).

0 6,000 5,579 0 30,500 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES452-516-802.00

0 6,000 5,579 0 30,500 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (6,000)(5,579)0 (30,500)0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 516 - SUPERIOR STREET CONSTRUCTION



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 10:50 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/4BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND

Dept 930 - TRANSFER IN
ESTIMATED REVENUES

2017 - $100,000 FROM WATER FUND FOR NEW LINES UNDER SUPERIOR ST.
       $26,000 FROM FUND 450 - STREET IMPROVEMENT FOR PARKING LANES
       $  4,500 FROM FUND 450 - STREET IMPROVEMENT FOR EXTRAS ON CASS
          ST. BETWEEN MDOT PROJECT AND BRIDGE.

0 0 0 0 30,500 0 TRANSFER IN452-930-699.00

0 0 0 0 30,500 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 0 0 0 30,500 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 930 - TRANSFER IN

50,105 50,105 100,350 141,105 141,105 141,105 ENDING FUND BALANCE
50,105 141,105 141,105 141,105 141,105 141,105 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

3,283,000 91,000 40,755 0 30,500 0 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 452
3,283,000 0 0 0 30,500 0 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 452

0 (91,000)(40,755)0 0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 452



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:01 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 226 SOLID WASTE FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

229,500 225,000 218,737 200,000 234,558 225,214 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES226-000-402.00
(1,250)(1,250)(1,228)0 (1,184)(3,709)PROPERTY TAX CHARGEBACKS226-000-402.01

350 547 548 600 539 664 DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY T226-000-410.00
3,500 5,418 5,419 2,000 5,670 1,644 PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES226-000-424.00

0 0 0 15,000 29,578 0 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE TAX226-000-441.00
1,325 1,325 1,277 1,300 1,873 1,903 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES226-000-445.00

17,000 18,498 18,498 0 0 15,690 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION STATE REIM226-000-573.00
0 0 0 500 500 500 LOCAL GRANTS226-000-590.00
0 0 0 250 60 187 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENT226-000-664.03

2,300 1,950 1,545 1,250 1,899 1,443 INTEREST226-000-665.00
0 0 0 500 0 (386)REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS226-000-676.00

252,725 251,488 244,796 221,400 273,493 243,150   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

252,725 251,488 244,796 221,400 273,493 243,150 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:01 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 226 SOLID WASTE FUND

Dept 523 - LEAF PICKUP
APPROPRIATIONS

2,750 5,500 0 5,500 3,799 12,714 SALARIES AND WAGES226-523-702.00
0 1,500 0 500 1,833 5,198 PART TIME WAGES226-523-703.00

400 400 0 400 0 995 OVERTIME226-523-704.00
8 100 0 55 80 265 MEDICARE226-523-714.00

195 450 0 350 340 1,134 FICA226-523-715.00
1,175 2,325 0 2,325 1,318 5,914 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE226-523-716.00

5 10 0 10 5 35 LIFE INSURANCE226-523-717.00
200 250 0 250 110 402 PENSION CONTRIBUTION226-523-719.00

0 250 0 250 210 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION226-523-719.01
220 500 0 475 290 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION226-523-720.00

5 20 0 20 2 1 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE226-523-721.00
65 150 0 150 73 266 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB226-523-723.00
0 250 0 250 0 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES226-523-776.00
0 0 0 400 60 0 PUBLISHING226-523-900.00

FOR 2017, 2018 & 2019 A DECISION WAS MADE TO LEAVE SOME MONEY BUDGETED
IN LEAF PICKUP SINCE WE ARE UNCERTAIN AT THIS TIME WHAT COSTS MAY BE
INCURRED BY THE CITY AS WE TRANSITION TO THE NEW LEAF REMOVAL
PRACTICE.

2,500 4,500 0 9,000 5,769 25,876 EQUIPMENT RENTAL226-523-943.00

7,523 16,205 0 19,935 13,889 52,800   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(7,523)(16,205)0 (19,935)(13,889)(52,800)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 523 - LEAF PICKUP



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:01 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 226 SOLID WASTE FUND

Dept 524 - TREE DUMP
APPROPRIATIONS

1,600 4,000 429 5,100 817 694 SALARIES AND WAGES226-524-702.00
2,200 3,575 1,179 3,575 1,462 1,637 OVERTIME226-524-704.00

55 110 22 127 31 32 MEDICARE226-524-714.00
235 470 95 540 134 137 FICA226-524-715.00

1,200 2,900 693 3,975 1,067 994 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE226-524-716.00
10 10 3 25 9 7 LIFE INSURANCE226-524-717.00

120 150 43 340 21 41 PENSION CONTRIBUTION226-524-719.00
0 535 109 535 198 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION226-524-719.01

150 590 126 590 113 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION226-524-720.00
10 25 0 25 0 0 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE226-524-721.00
80 155 32 175 46 47 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB226-524-723.00
0 0 0 200 125 250 UNIFORMS226-524-741.00
0 0 0 200 600 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES226-524-802.00
0 0 0 200 0 223 PUBLISHING226-524-900.00

4,500 3,500 1,197 5,500 1,844 2,008 EQUIPMENT RENTAL226-524-943.00

10,160 16,020 3,928 21,107 6,467 6,070   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(10,160)(16,020)(3,928)(21,107)(6,467)(6,070)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 524 - TREE DUMP



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:01 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 226 SOLID WASTE FUND

Dept 528 - SOLID WASTE
APPROPRIATIONS

6,740 27,100 19,709 24,394 16,210 18,010 SALARIES AND WAGES226-528-702.00
1,100 400 0 22,620 294 648 PART TIME WAGES226-528-703.00
4,200 4,500 2,574 5,500 3,650 3,335 OVERTIME226-528-704.00

125 450 308 751 280 304 MEDICARE226-528-714.00
540 1,950 1,317 3,204 1,195 1,301 FICA226-528-715.00

3,290 14,990 11,069 11,400 7,991 8,748 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE226-528-716.00
20 130 75 160 71 79 LIFE INSURANCE226-528-717.00
0 0 0 0 0 1 DISABLIITY INSURANCE226-528-718.00

365 1,100 665 1,100 300 311 PENSION CONTRIBUTION226-528-719.00
0 1,000 506 1,600 581 0 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION226-528-719.01

555 1,000 632 2,373 409 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION226-528-720.00
10 30 5 120 2 3 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE226-528-721.00

155 620 446 584 396 421 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB226-528-723.00
400 400 0 400 125 0 POSTAGE226-528-744.00
250 0 0 250 0 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES226-528-776.00

INCLUDES:
    - $7,000 TO COUNTY FOR ANNUAL RECYCLING CENTER COST;
    - $10,000 TO MATCH THE GENERAL FUND FOR TREE TRIMMING (CLEAN UP).
    - $10,500 FOR THE ANNUAL SUMMER CLEAN UP/RECYCLING DAY
    - $28,000 IN 2018 FOR THE COST TO DEMO PROPERTY ON AUSTIN AVE.
    - $7,500 FOR EMERGENCY REMOVAL OF FIRE DAMAGED STRUCTURES
      AND/OR OTHER SOLID WASTE HEALTH AND SAFETY CONCERNS.

50,000 67,500 30,413 45,000 38,332 37,908 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES226-528-802.00

56,293 8,035 6,695 8,035 7,725 7,500 ADMINISTRATION FEES226-528-840.00
150 0 0 150 224 0 PUBLISHING226-528-900.00
500 475 410 500 395 492 ELECTRICITY226-528-922.00

6,675 6,675 5,563 6,675 6,675 6,675 BUILDING RENTAL226-528-941.00
8,000 9,000 5,074 9,000 4,503 8,549 EQUIPMENT RENTAL226-528-943.00

139,368 145,355 85,461 143,816 89,358 94,285   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(139,368)(145,355)(85,461)(143,816)(89,358)(94,285)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 528 - SOLID WASTE



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:01 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 226 SOLID WASTE FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

2017:
       $14,000 TO GEN FUND FOR DISPOSAL OF BRUSH, GRASS, LIMBS, ETC.
       $10,000 TO GENERAL FUND FOR TRASH/DUMPSTERS.
       $1,500 FOR DPW BLDG PMT
2018:
       $14,000 TO GEN FUND FOR DISPOSAL OF BRUSH, GRASS, LIMBS, ETC.
       $10,000 TO GENERAL FUND FOR TRASH/DUMPSTERS.
       $1,500 FOR DPW BLDG PMT
2019:
       $14,000 TO GEN FUND FOR DISPOSAL OF BRUSH, GRASS, LIMBS, ETC.
       $10,000 TO GENERAL FUND FOR TRASH/DUMPSTERS.
       $1,500 FOR DPW BLDG PMT

25,500 25,500 25,500 25,500 25,500 11,500 TRANSFER OUT226-965-999.00

25,500 25,500 25,500 25,500 25,500 11,500   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(25,500)(25,500)(25,500)(25,500)(25,500)(11,500)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

374,568 304,394 385,893 267,028 255,985 117,709 ENDING FUND BALANCE
304,394 255,986 255,986 255,986 117,706 39,214 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

182,551 203,080 114,889 210,358 135,214 164,655 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 226
252,725 251,488 244,796 221,400 273,493 243,150 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 226

70,174 48,408 129,907 11,042 138,279 78,495 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 226



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 11:16 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 0 0 0 0 10,875 CHARGES FOR SERVICES-FEES590-000-607.00
1,180,000 1,175,000 982,326 1,110,000 1,166,169 1,181,365 UB CHRGS FOR SRVC - CITY590-000-633.00

32,500 32,500 30,243 20,000 24,290 29,330 LATE FEES/ON-OFF CHARGES590-000-660.00
5,300 5,300 4,400 5,300 5,652 2,794 INTEREST590-000-665.00

0 0 0 0 0 (2,564)OTHER REVENUES590-000-671.00
3,500 2,526 2,526 5,500 16,086 5,153 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS590-000-676.00

0 0 10,000 0 0 0 GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS590-000-693.00

1,221,300 1,215,326 1,029,495 1,140,800 1,212,197 1,226,953   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

1,221,300 1,215,326 1,029,495 1,140,800 1,212,197 1,226,953 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 11:16 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

Dept 536 - SEWER UTILITY OPERATIONS
APPROPRIATIONS

345,320 359,835 278,707 381,713 332,799 338,652 SALARIES AND WAGES590-536-702.00
4,400 24,600 13,920 2,500 178 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES590-536-702.01
4,370 0 0 0 0 0 PART TIME WAGES590-536-703.00

12,300 30,300 21,746 22,350 27,874 21,105 OVERTIME590-536-704.00
7,500 7,500 0 7,500 5,000 5,000 LICENSING INCENTIVE590-536-706.00
3,150 3,025 2,275 3,025 2,660 2,340 ON CALL PAY590-536-707.00
5,395 6,085 4,417 5,935 5,130 5,127 MEDICARE590-536-714.00

23,085 26,030 18,671 25,387 21,932 21,920 FICA590-536-715.00
124,750 151,550 119,269 160,750 139,207 125,162 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE590-536-716.00

1,060 1,170 944 1,170 1,032 1,021 LIFE INSURANCE590-536-717.00
0 275 64 275 259 259 DISABLIITY INSURANCE590-536-718.00

12,465 10,725 7,370 10,525 7,594 7,305 PENSION CONTRIBUTION590-536-719.00
26,080 27,400 21,298 25,164 24,169 5,244 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION590-536-719.01
9,910 9,675 6,751 8,258 4,035 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION590-536-720.00

215 150 47 685 56 51 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE590-536-721.00
7,220 8,350 6,085 7,765 6,866 6,901 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB590-536-723.00

0 188 188 635 632 211 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE590-536-724.00
1,500 1,200 1,001 1,500 1,248 1,199 OFFICE SUPPLY590-536-726.00
1,500 1,200 986 1,500 1,377 0 OFFICE EQUIPMENT590-536-727.00

200 650 634 100 0 95 DUES, BOOKS, PERIODICAL590-536-728.00
3,750 3,600 3,050 3,700 2,844 3,203 UNIFORMS590-536-741.00
4,200 4,150 3,652 4,000 4,394 4,245 POSTAGE590-536-744.00
4,500 2,800 2,112 4,500 4,774 347 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT590-536-746.00

500 750 601 500 177 170 SAFETY MATERIALS (OSHA)590-536-750.00
23,500 27,000 21,903 20,000 26,096 17,096 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES590-536-776.00
26,000 27,500 18,439 26,000 24,276 25,203 CHEMICALS590-536-777.00
7,000 6,800 5,915 5,500 4,731 3,750 GASOLINE590-536-778.00

23,000 24,500 21,174 13,000 12,080 10,112 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES590-536-780.00
41,000 26,500 21,467 16,000 11,881 3,051 MAINTENANCE OF PUMP EQUIPMENT590-536-781.00
6,000 1,200 700 6,000 2,770 6,923 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA590-536-785.00
3,500 500 375 4,500 3,245 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-536-801.00

47,500 52,100 38,437 48,500 45,775 29,849 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-536-802.00
400 0 0 400 258 77 PRINTING AND COPYING590-536-804.00

1,000 0 0 1,000 0 0 INDUSTRIAL PRE-TREATMENT590-536-807.00
43,000 41,000 20,145 41,000 35,509 42,768 SLUDGE TREATMENT590-536-808.00

400 225 179 400 105 0 CONFERENCE COSTS590-536-819.00
112,663 41,600 34,667 41,600 40,000 40,000 ADMINISTRATION FEES590-536-840.00

4,200 4,200 2,723 4,200 3,437 3,608 TELEPHONE590-536-851.00
2,000 1,700 1,124 1,700 330 637 TRAINING590-536-885.00

22,000 18,500 13,438 22,000 16,044 15,268 GAS590-536-921.00
110,000 112,500 81,508 106,500 101,337 92,818 ELECTRICITY590-536-922.00

6,675 6,675 5,563 6,675 6,675 6,675 BUILDING RENTAL590-536-941.00
800 2,500 1,702 750 650 0 EQUIPMENT RENTAL590-536-943.00

27,500 26,100 20,827 26,100 24,526 24,647 INSURANCE AND BONDS590-536-950.00
3,700 1,500 1,192 3,700 2,603 340 MISCELLANEOUS590-536-955.00

252,000 245,000 197,244 245,000 243,808 236,376 DEPRECIATION590-536-968.00

1,367,208 1,348,808 1,022,510 1,319,962 1,200,373 1,108,755   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(1,367,208)(1,348,808)(1,022,510)(1,319,962)(1,200,373)(1,108,755)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 536 - SEWER UTILITY OPERATIONS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 11:16 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

Dept 542 - WWTP ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS
APPROPRIATIONS

PAYMENT TO HONEYWELL FOR THE ON-GOING ENERGY MONITORING SERVICES.

7,800 7,800 6,077 7,800 7,983 7,827 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-542-802.00

7,800 7,800 6,077 7,800 7,983 7,827   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(7,800)(7,800)(6,077)(7,800)(7,983)(7,827)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 542 - WWTP ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 11:16 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

Dept 544 - SAW GRANT PROJECT
ESTIMATED REVENUES

SAW GRANT - TOTAL AWARD AMT. - $1,625,000.  ESTIMATED COMPLETION TIME
WAS 3 YRS. (2015 THROUGH 2017) SO NOTHING WAS REFLECTED AFTER 2017.

0 0 0 0 637,256 591,504 STATE GRANTS590-544-540.00

0 0 0 0 637,256 591,504   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

2015 - RECEIVED $397,002 OF THE TOTAL $1,625,000 GRANT.
2016 - RECEIVED $591,504 OF THE TOTAL $1,625,000 GRANT.
2017 - RECEIVED $637,256 OF THE TOTAL $1,625,000 GRANT.

0 0 0 0 615,206 589,742 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-544-801.00

0 0 0 0 1,533 1,762 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-544-802.00

0 0 0 0 616,739 591,504   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 20,517 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 544 - SAW GRANT PROJECT



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 11:16 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

Dept 546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.
ESTIMATED REVENUES

MEDC $950,000 GRANT FOR DIGESTER, PUMPS, ETC.  WHEN THE 2018 BUDGET
WAS COMPLETED IN FALL OF 2017, WE EXPECTED THE PROJECT TO BE COMPLETED
BY 2017 YEAR END.  BUT BAD WEATHER AND EXCESSIVE WATER CAUSED IT TO BE
PUSHED INTO SPRING OF 2018.

0 97,102 97,103 0 852,897 0 STATE GRANTS590-546-540.00

0 2,250 2,250 0 0 0 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS590-546-676.00

0 99,352 99,353 0 852,897 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS
0 400,000 248,920 0 193,907 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-546-801.00

THERE WERE SIGNIFICANT COST OVERRUNS ON THIS PROJECT DUE TO THE HIGH
WATER TABLE AT THE PLANT THAT REQUIRED EXTENSIVE DE-WATERING.
COUNCIL WAS ASKED FOR APPROVAL FOR THESE OVERRUNS.  NOTE THAT THE
EXPENDITURES REFLECTED ABOVE DO NOT INDICATE A PROJECT OVERRUN.
THAT IS BECAUSE MUCH OF THE EXPENSE WAS FOR NEW EQUIPMENT,  AND
UNLIKE A GOVERNMENTAL FUND, THE SEWER FUND IS AN ENTERPRISE FUND
WHICH OPERATES SIMILAR TO A PRIVATE BUSINESS IN THAT EQUIPMENT IS
RECORDED ON THE BALANCE SHEET AND DEPRECIATED OVER ITS USEFUL LIFE,
AND NOT EXPENSED AT THE TIME OF PURCHASE.

THE $400,000 IN CONTRACTUAL IN THE 2018 COLUMN REPRESENTS ABOUT
$155,000 CURRENTLY IN DISPUTE.  IF THE INVOICE IS REDUCED, THIS AMOUNT
WILL DECREASE ACCORDINGLY.

0 0 0 0 85 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES590-546-802.00

0 400,000 248,920 0 193,992 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (300,648)(149,567)0 658,905 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 11:16 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 6/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 590 SEWER FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

TRANSFER TO HONEYWELL ENERGY BOND DEBT SERV FUND: $146,900 TRANSFER
TO DPW BLDG DEBT SERVICE FUND: $1,500.  HONEYWELL ENERGY BOND MATURES
10-1-2024.  DPW BLDG LOAN MATURES 7-1-2023.

148,400 148,400 148,400 148,400 148,400 151,447 TRANSFER OUT590-965-999.00

148,400 148,400 148,400 148,400 148,400 151,447   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(148,400)(148,400)(148,400)(148,400)(148,400)(151,447)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

4,164,717 4,466,825 4,760,096 4,721,793 5,057,152 4,522,288 ENDING FUND BALANCE
4,466,825 5,057,155 5,057,155 5,057,155 4,522,289 4,563,364 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

1,523,408 1,905,008 1,425,907 1,476,162 2,167,487 1,859,533 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 590
1,221,300 1,314,678 1,128,848 1,140,800 2,702,350 1,818,457 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 590

(302,108)(590,330)(297,059)(335,362)534,863 (41,076)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 590



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:11 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

1,500 0 0 2,500 1,594 14,375 CHARGES FOR SERVICES-FEES591-000-607.00
1,500 800 763 1,500 2,059 2,703 CHARGES FOR SERVICES RENDERED591-000-626.00

900,000 880,000 748,625 870,000 906,658 910,105 UB CHRGS FOR SRVC - CITY591-000-633.00
20,500 20,500 17,830 18,500 20,629 22,387 LATE FEES/ON-OFF CHARGES591-000-660.00

0 0 (8)0 (569)360 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENT591-000-664.03
13,250 12,750 10,424 9,500 10,153 7,667 INTEREST591-000-665.00
15,000 15,581 15,555 15,000 17,744 14,713 OTHER REVENUES591-000-671.00
1,100 1,083 1,083 1,250 1,604 1,571 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS591-000-676.00

952,850 930,714 794,272 918,250 959,872 973,881   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

952,850 930,714 794,272 918,250 959,872 973,881 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:11 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

Dept 536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS
APPROPRIATIONS

179,840 223,700 172,472 211,862 200,019 222,876 SALARIES AND WAGES591-536-702.00
500 8,445 1,260 1,200 178 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES591-536-702.01

4,370 0 0 0 0 54 PART TIME WAGES591-536-703.00
16,850 25,900 16,922 20,100 20,438 17,498 OVERTIME591-536-704.00
5,000 5,000 0 5,000 2,750 2,500 LICENSING INCENTIVE591-536-706.00
1,925 1,575 1,225 1,550 1,120 1,460 ON CALL PAY591-536-707.00
2,970 3,745 2,656 3,405 3,131 3,275 MEDICARE591-536-714.00

12,720 16,015 11,144 14,448 13,391 14,008 FICA591-536-715.00
83,270 104,500 79,541 104,500 99,302 102,429 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE591-536-716.00

525 675 521 675 649 673 LIFE INSURANCE591-536-717.00
200 275 64 275 259 259 DISABLIITY INSURANCE591-536-718.00

4,590 5,500 4,004 5,075 4,990 4,552 PENSION CONTRIBUTION591-536-719.00
17,210 17,500 12,926 14,350 13,793 5,243 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION591-536-719.01
9,175 9,119 6,513 9,119 4,900 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION591-536-720.00

115 100 24 400 28 30 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE591-536-721.00
3,875 5,175 3,593 4,301 4,126 4,316 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB591-536-723.00

0 190 188 635 632 211 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE591-536-724.00
1,000 800 692 1,000 599 1,602 OFFICE SUPPLY591-536-726.00

100 100 100 100 0 0 OFFICE EQUIPMENT591-536-727.00
150 135 107 150 102 91 DUES, BOOKS, PERIODICAL591-536-728.00

2,200 2,120 1,782 2,000 1,696 1,742 UNIFORMS591-536-741.00
3,900 3,600 3,133 3,900 4,400 3,630 POSTAGE591-536-744.00
2,500 2,000 1,297 2,500 1,867 1,385 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT591-536-746.00

400 115 239 400 639 319 SAFETY MATERIALS (OSHA)591-536-750.00
13,500 14,500 12,575 12,000 9,247 9,476 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES591-536-776.00
45,000 38,500 30,490 45,000 41,992 39,514 CHEMICALS591-536-777.00
15,500 15,500 12,108 10,000 12,366 9,085 GASOLINE591-536-778.00
6,500 4,500 2,507 6,500 8,478 6,084 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES591-536-780.00

14,000 2,000 1,405 12,000 18,274 5,092 MAINTENANCE OF PUMP EQUIPMENT591-536-781.00
52,500 56,250 48,370 45,000 47,577 33,885 DISTRIBUTION MAINTENANCE SUPPL591-536-783.00
3,000 2,500 1,796 3,000 553 854 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA591-536-785.00

15,000 7,500 5,053 15,000 5,680 195 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-536-801.00
50,100 65,100 50,385 50,000 38,570 43,713 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES591-536-802.00

500 500 0 500 258 100 PRINTING AND COPYING591-536-804.00
500 400 338 500 105 0 CONFERENCE COSTS591-536-819.00

112,663 41,050 34,208 41,050 41,050 40,000 ADMINISTRATION FEES591-536-840.00
6,000 5,750 5,080 6,000 5,507 5,358 TELEPHONE591-536-851.00
1,000 1,100 1,024 1,000 720 332 TRAINING591-536-885.00

150 150 0 150 0 0 PUBLISHING591-536-900.00
8,500 6,500 3,979 12,000 6,086 5,274 GAS591-536-921.00

107,500 105,000 85,768 85,500 83,740 79,038 ELECTRICITY591-536-922.00

STREET DEPT GARAGE RENT - $6,675/YR.

6,675 6,675 5,563 6,675 6,675 6,675 BUILDING RENTAL591-536-941.00

25,000 25,000 19,773 16,000 12,686 9,573 EQUIPMENT RENTAL591-536-943.00
11,250 10,600 8,458 10,600 9,961 10,026 INSURANCE AND BONDS591-536-950.00
1,200 1,200 954 600 2,563 230 MISCELLANEOUS591-536-955.00

215,000 212,500 175,193 212,500 213,706 215,613 DEPRECIATION591-536-968.00

1,064,423 1,059,059 825,430 998,520 944,803 908,270   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(1,064,423)(1,059,059)(825,430)(998,520)(944,803)(908,270)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:11 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

Dept 540 - WELLHEAD PROTECTION
APPROPRIATIONS

500 500 0 500 0 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES591-540-776.00

500 500 0 500 0 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(500)(500)0 (500)0 0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 540 - WELLHEAD PROTECTION



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:11 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

Dept 548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT
ESTIMATED REVENUES

0 500,000 500,000 0 0 0 STATE GRANTS591-548-540.00

0 500,000 500,000 0 0 0   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS
0 55,000 52,519 0 7,360 0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-548-801.00
0 513,200 513,200 0 0 0 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES591-548-802.00

0 568,200 565,719 0 7,360 0   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (68,200)(65,719)0 (7,360)0 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:11 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

Dept 905 - DEBT SERVICE-BONDS
APPROPRIATIONS

WATER SUPPLY REVENUE BONDS WITH CAPITAL ONE BANK - MATURES
10/01/2017 SO NO INTEREST EXPENSE REFLECTED IN 2018 OR 2019.

0 0 0 0 3,224 6,240 INTEREST591-905-995.00

0 0 0 0 3,224 6,240   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 (3,224)(6,240)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 905 - DEBT SERVICE-BONDS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:11 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 6/6BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 591 WATER FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

2018 - TRANSFER TO HONEYWELL ENERGY BOND DEBT SERV FUND: $9,950
             TRANSFER TO DPW BLDG DEBT SERVICE FUND: $1,500
2019 - TRANSFER TO HONEYWELL ENERGY BOND DEBT SERV FUND: $9,950
             TRANSFER TO DPW BLDG DEBT SERVICE FUND: $1,500
             TRANSFER TO MDOT ST IMPROVEMENT FUND 452 FOR NORTH ST WATER
             LINE REPLACEMENT - $120,000.
             TRANSFER TO MDOT ST IMPROVEMENT FUND 452 FOR IRWIN AVE WATER
             LINE REPLACEMENT - $100,350.

2017 - TRANSFER TO HONEYWELL ENERGY BOND DEBT SERV FUND: $9,950
       - TRANSFER TO DPW BLDG DEBT SERVICE FUND: $1,500

231,800 11,450 11,450 11,450 11,450 11,668 TRANSFER OUT591-965-999.00

231,800 11,450 11,450 11,450 11,450 11,668   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(231,800)(11,450)(11,450)(11,450)(11,450)(11,668)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

4,925,138 5,269,011 5,369,179 5,385,286 5,477,502 5,484,466 ENDING FUND BALANCE
5,269,011 5,477,506 5,477,506 5,477,506 5,484,467 5,436,763 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

1,296,723 1,639,209 1,402,599 1,010,470 966,837 926,178 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 591
952,850 1,430,714 1,294,272 918,250 959,872 973,881 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 591

(343,873)(208,495)(108,327)(92,220)(6,965)47,703 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 591



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:17 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

1,650 1,450 1,051 1,050 1,206 768 INTEREST661-000-665.00
60,025 60,025 50,021 60,025 60,151 60,072 RENTS661-000-667.00

220,000 205,000 188,527 205,000 203,253 228,289 EQUIPMENT RENT661-000-669.00
0 0 0 0 5,118 0 OTHER REVENUES661-000-671.00
0 0 0 0 0 4,774 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS661-000-673.00

3,500 4,777 4,777 2,500 27,159 8,003 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS661-000-676.00

285,175 271,252 244,376 268,575 296,887 301,906   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

285,175 271,252 244,376 268,575 296,887 301,906 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:17 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

Dept 770 - EQUIPMENT POOL
APPROPRIATIONS

40,640 42,000 31,306 47,641 42,598 29,562 SALARIES AND WAGES661-770-702.00
4,500 7,650 5,062 500 13 0 LEAVE BANK PAYOUTS AND/OR BONUSES661-770-702.01

0 500 275 0 0 0 WORKERS COMP SICK LEAVE661-770-702.02
2,185 0 0 0 0 0 PART TIME WAGES661-770-703.00

400 1,200 42 1,200 453 978 OVERTIME661-770-704.00
675 720 509 742 589 410 MEDICARE661-770-714.00

2,885 3,120 2,176 3,184 2,518 1,753 FICA661-770-715.00
21,535 24,500 17,547 26,500 20,772 21,330 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE661-770-716.00

125 160 107 160 103 135 LIFE INSURANCE661-770-717.00
3,060 2,975 1,945 2,975 522 215 PENSION CONTRIBUTION661-770-719.00

0 1,242 586 1,242 3,461 2,727 MERS DB CONTRIBUTION661-770-719.01
1,810 2,184 1,400 2,184 1,300 0 WORKERS COMPENSATION661-770-720.00

30 30 5 100 9 7 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE661-770-721.00
850 1,045 677 1,045 783 563 RETIREE HEALTH SAVINGS CONTRIB661-770-723.00

1,000 860 687 1,000 1,622 1,150 OFFICE SUPPLY661-770-726.00
1,400 1,340 1,031 750 466 482 UNIFORMS661-770-741.00

300 100 144 600 539 455 SAFETY MATERIALS (OSHA)661-770-750.00
10,500 9,500 7,709 12,500 9,080 21,098 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES661-770-776.00
29,000 27,600 22,399 21,000 22,943 17,539 GASOLINE661-770-778.00
55,000 61,300 47,779 55,000 49,166 59,921 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES661-770-780.00
3,500 3,000 2,338 3,500 2,136 1,950 BUILDING & GROUNDS REPAIR & MA661-770-785.00
9,000 18,000 13,515 7,500 8,848 6,955 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES661-770-802.00

75 75 0 75 57 0 PRINTING AND COPYING661-770-804.00
16,555 11,680 9,733 11,680 11,230 10,900 ADMINISTRATION FEES661-770-840.00
3,500 3,500 2,931 3,400 3,267 2,908 TELEPHONE661-770-851.00

100 1,780 1,780 100 0 0 TRAINING661-770-885.00
0 0 0 100 0 102 PUBLISHING661-770-900.00

10,000 10,000 6,783 10,000 6,138 4,980 GAS661-770-921.00
7,500 7,200 5,280 7,500 6,545 5,634 ELECTRICITY661-770-922.00

WESTERN EQUIPMENT FINANCE - PURCHASE OF TWO 2016 GRAVELY
COMMERCIAL MOWERS.  COST - $23,260.  MONTHLY PMTS OF $679.19
MATURES 7/25/2019.

9,000 8,650 6,795 8,650 8,206 4,379 EQUIPMENT RENTAL661-770-943.00

15,750 15,000 12,086 15,000 14,330 14,273 INSURANCE AND BONDS661-770-950.00
500 350 235 500 12 213 MISCELLANEOUS661-770-955.00

48,500 48,500 34,356 48,500 45,261 50,068 DEPRECIATION661-770-968.00

299,875 315,761 237,218 294,828 262,967 260,687   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(299,875)(315,761)(237,218)(294,828)(262,967)(260,687)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 770 - EQUIPMENT POOL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:17 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

Dept 905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS
APPROPRIATIONS

HOMESTEAD SAVINGS BANK LOAN FOR 2016 RECREATION PASSENGER
VAN.  COST - $25,422;  SEMI-ANNUAL PMTS MAR AND SEPT.
MATURES 9/14/2018.

0 93 93 100 220 158 INTEREST661-905-995.00

0 93 93 100 220 158   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (93)(93)(100)(220)(158)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:17 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 4/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

Dept 906 - DEBT SERVICE - LOANS
APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 0 (26)INTEREST661-906-995.00

0 0 0 0 0 (26)  TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 0 26 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 906 - DEBT SERVICE - LOANS



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:17 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 5/5BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

TO COVER ANNUAL DEBT PYMTS (ALL YEARS):
     TRANSFER TO DPW BLDG DEBT SERVICE FUND = $3,000
     $14,850 TO ENERGY/425/GENERATOR BOND PMT

17,850 17,850 17,850 17,850 17,850 18,159 TRANSFER OUT661-965-999.00

17,850 17,850 17,850 17,850 17,850 18,159   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(17,850)(17,850)(17,850)(17,850)(17,850)(18,159)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

151,479 184,029 235,696 202,278 246,484 230,632 ENDING FUND BALANCE
184,029 246,481 246,481 246,481 230,634 207,704 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

317,725 333,704 255,161 312,778 281,037 278,978 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 661
285,175 271,252 244,376 268,575 296,887 301,906 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 661

(32,550)(62,452)(10,785)(44,203)15,850 22,928 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 661



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 08:47 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/1BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 711 CEMETERY TRUST FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

(250)(250)34 (350)(149)(30)UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENT711-000-664.03
4,000 3,250 4,370 2,900 3,548 3,726 INTEREST711-000-665.00

3,750 3,000 4,404 2,550 3,399 3,696   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

3,750 3,000 4,404 2,550 3,399 3,696 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL

Dept 965 - TRANSFER OUT
APPROPRIATIONS

TRANSFER TO CEMETERY FOR OPERATIONS - BEGINNING WITH THE 2019 BUDGET
YEAR, NO TRANSFERS WILL BE MADE AS ONLY INVESTMENT REVENUES SHOULD
BE USED FOR PERPETUAL CARE, AND THE CITY WILL WORK ON BUILDING UP THE
BALANCE IN THE TRUST ONCE AGAIN.

0 30,000 30,000 30,000 20,000 17,000 TRANSFER OUT711-965-999.00

0 30,000 30,000 30,000 20,000 17,000   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

0 (30,000)(30,000)(30,000)(20,000)(17,000)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 965 - TRANSFER OUT

240,391 236,641 238,045 236,191 263,641 280,243 ENDING FUND BALANCE
236,641 263,641 263,641 263,641 280,242 293,547 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

0 30,000 30,000 30,000 20,000 17,000 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 711
3,750 3,000 4,404 2,550 3,399 3,696 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 711

3,750 (27,000)(25,596)(27,450)(16,601)(13,304)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 711



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:25 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/3BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 265 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

3,000 0 0 0 0 0 FORFEITURES - STATE265-000-661.00
41,000 0 0 0 0 0 FORFEITURES - FEDERAL265-000-661.01

0 0 26 50 186 0 INTEREST265-000-665.00
0 1,000 790 20,000 20,565 1,840 OTHER REVENUES265-000-671.00
0 11,830 0 2,900 2,551 6,445 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS265-000-676.00
0 0 0 0 4,470 0 K-9265-000-678.00

44,000 12,830 816 22,950 27,772 8,285   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

44,000 12,830 816 22,950 27,772 8,285 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:25 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 2/3BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 265 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Dept 333 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT
APPROPRIATIONS

2,500 0 0 500 2,452 345 UNIFORMS265-333-741.00
0 98 98 1,000 600 10,624 TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT265-333-746.00

9,000 9,750 8,703 2,000 4,607 780 GASOLINE265-333-778.00
0 0 0 2,500 9,576 1,437 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES265-333-780.00

20,000 2,250 1,405 1,200 1,963 463 K-9265-333-790.00
5,000 2,000 1,743 5,000 21,195 12,602 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES265-333-802.00

0 0 0 500 0 0 INFORMANT FEES265-333-815.00
1,500 1,100 1,700 1,500 2,000 1,200 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE PURCHASE265-333-827.00

10,000 10,500 8,754 10,000 11,813 11,818 TELEPHONE265-333-851.00
2,500 80 80 1,250 2,496 2,461 TRAINING265-333-885.00

0 250 250 0 (1)899 FORFEITURE EXPENSE265-333-888.00
1,400 1,400 1,223 1,200 1,085 0 GAS265-333-921.00

400 400 361 450 446 0 ELECTRICITY265-333-922.00
200 200 144 150 196 0 WATER265-333-923.00

20,000 1,236 1,236 5,000 17,261 4,915 EQUIPMENT265-333-977.00
0 0 0 0 325 0 VEHICLES265-333-981.00

72,500 29,264 25,697 32,250 76,014 47,544   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(72,500)(29,264)(25,697)(32,250)(76,014)(47,544)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 333 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 09:25 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 3/3BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 265 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Dept 400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR
ESTIMATED REVENUES

30,000 25,000 23,460 25,000 29,244 42,928 OTHER REVENUES265-400-671.00
0 0 0 0 0 1,402 REIMBURSEMENTS & RESTITUTIONS265-400-676.00

30,000 25,000 23,460 25,000 29,244 44,330   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS
0 0 0 1,000 851 871 GASOLINE265-400-778.00

1,500 0 35 1,500 1,296 1,531 VEHICLE & EQUIP MAINT SUPPLIES265-400-780.00
0 219 418 9,000 3,074 15,008 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES265-400-802.00
0 1,263 1,263 0 0 5,129 TRAINING265-400-885.00
0 0 0 1,500 6,071 0 EQUIPMENT265-400-977.00
0 9,500 6,998 9,500 9,392 7,914 VEHICLES265-400-981.00

1,500 10,982 8,714 22,500 20,684 30,453   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

28,500 14,018 14,746 2,500 8,560 13,877 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

6,781 6,781 (938)2,397 9,197 48,881 ENDING FUND BALANCE
6,781 9,197 9,197 9,197 48,879 74,263 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

74,000 40,246 34,411 54,750 96,698 77,997 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 265
74,000 37,830 24,276 47,950 57,016 52,615 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 265

0 (2,416)(10,135)(6,800)(39,682)(25,382)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 265



Calculations as of 10/31/2018
 

11/26/2018 08:43 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

Page: 1/1BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION

2019
MGR RECOM'D

BUDGET

2018
PROJECTED
ACTIVITY

2018
ACTIVITY

THRU 10/31/18

2018
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

2017
ACTIVITY

2016
ACTIVITY

DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund: 367 SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND

Dept 000 - GENERAL
ESTIMATED REVENUES

2017 WAS THE LAST YEAR FOR THE SIDEWALK PROGRAM, HOWEVER, WE
RECEIVED MONEY FROM THE COUNTY IN 2018 FROM THE SETTLEMENT OF
THE 2017 TAXES.

0 24,436 24,436 0 150,199 156,619 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENTS367-000-408.00

(3,500)(5,000)(3,550)(5,000)(3,090)(6,889)PROPERTY TAX CHARGEBACKS367-000-408.01
0 1,220 1,220 0 316 2,110 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES367-000-445.00

2,500 3,250 3,006 1,500 2,543 2,243 INTEREST367-000-665.00

(1,000)23,906 25,112 (3,500)149,968 154,083   TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES

(1,000)23,906 25,112 (3,500)149,968 154,083 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 000 - GENERAL

Dept 443 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM
APPROPRIATIONS

0 0 0 0 14,400 0 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES367-443-776.00
30,000 0 0 30,000 0 360 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES367-443-801.00

NO MAJOR SIDEWALK PROJECTS WERE COMPLETED IN 2018.  SOME EXPENSE
IS INCURRED AS PART OF THE STREET REPAIR PROJECTS.  ANTICIPATE DOING
MORE IN 2019.

270,000 23,856 0 170,000 5,571 110,047 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES367-443-802.00

300,000 23,856 0 200,000 19,971 110,407   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS

(300,000)(23,856)0 (200,000)(19,971)(110,407)NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - 443 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM

139,186 440,186 465,248 236,636 440,137 310,141 ENDING FUND BALANCE
440,186 440,136 440,136 440,136 310,140 266,465 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

300,000 23,856 0 200,000 19,971 110,407 APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 367
(1,000)23,906 25,112 (3,500)149,968 154,083 ESTIMATED REVENUES - FUND 367

(301,000)50 25,112 (203,500)129,997 43,676 NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 367












	11272018 Special Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	11-19-18 Study Session Minutes.pdf (p.8-11)
	11-19-18 Council Minutes.pdf (p.12-16)
	COA Rules of Procedure - Final Revision 2018.11.26.pdf (p.17-42)
	243 - Brownfield Fund.pdf (p.43)
	244 - EDC.pdf (p.44-45)
	246 - Incubator Fund.pdf (p.46-50)
	247 - TIFA Fund.pdf (p.51-52)
	296 - Revolving Loan Fund.pdf (p.53)
	277 - Maple Grove Fund.pdf (p.54)
	202 - Major Streets.pdf (p.55-63)
	203 - Local Streets.pdf (p.64-69)
	450 - Street Repair Fund.pdf (p.70-75)
	452 - MDOT Street Improvement Fund.pdf (p.76-79)
	226 - Solid Waste Fund.pdf (p.80-84)
	590 - Sewer Fund.pdf (p.85-90)
	591 - Water Fund.pdf (p.91-96)
	661 - Equipment Pool.pdf (p.97-101)
	711 - Cemetery Trust Fund.pdf (p.102)
	265 - Drug Enforcement Fund.pdf (p.103-105)
	367 - Sidewalk Program.pdf (p.106)

